VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Regular Council Meeting

Agenda

Glenwood Community Hall (90 Main Avenue)
Thursday September 10, 2020 scheduled to start at 7:00pm

To access the supporting documents to this agenda, first download the agenda to your own
computer/device, then look for them as attachments to the .pdf agenda document.

1. Call to Order
2. Prayer
3. Adoption of Agenda

4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:
a) 2020.08.13 Regular Council Meeting Minutes

5. Delegations: No delegations this month

6. Items for Discussion and/or Action:
a) Wayne Smith — Twin Rivers Rural Crime Watch Association - As per letter
b) Glenwood Library — As per letter
c) Cell phone for emergency calls
d) Credit Card
e) Changes to Signing Authority at ATB
f) Capital Projects ideas for 2021
g) Rescind Bylaw #102-2017 Regional Solid Waste Services Commission Authorization
h) Animal Control Bylaw #219-2020
i. Dog Waste information

7. Councillor Reports:

Mayor Elias

Deputy Mayor Rolfson
Councillor Lybbert
Councillor Carter
Councillor Clark

8. CAO Report:
a) Pioneer Parlour & Spray Park Ending dates
b) 2020 Road Base project review
c) AUMA Convention (Sept 16-25 Virtual) registration

9. Financial Reports:
a) Accounts Payable Cheques for August 2020 (20190841 — 20190889)
b) Budget vs Actual Review August 2020

10.Correspondence:
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a) EMS Dispatch Consolidation Municipal Notification
b) Ministry of Municipal Affairs’ 2019-20 Annual Report
c) ORRSC Annual board meeting

d) ORRSC Board Meeting - March

e) ORRSC Executive Minutes - June

f) Revised Joint Fire Service Agreement

11.Closed Meeting:
a) Contract Negotiations - As per Section 24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act

12. Adjournment:
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VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
August 13, 2020 Minutes

The Regular Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the Glenwood
Community Hall on August 13, 2020 scheduled at 7:00 PM.

In attendance: Mayor Albert Elias, Deputy Mayor David Rolfson, Councillor Rusty
Clark and Councillor Barton Lybbert. Councillor Gerry Carter was absent.

Officials: CAO Marilee Campbell and Asst CAO Carrie Kinahan was in attendance.

Called to Order

Prayer

Agenda Adoption
2020.08.109

Minutes Adoption
2020.08.110

Delegations:
Glen Goetz

Items for Discussion:
Municipal Stimulus
Program Grant
2020.08.111

Council & CAO Reports

Councillor Lybbert

Deputy Mayor Rolfson

Mayor Elias
Councillor Carter
Councillor Clark
CAO Report

2020.08.112

Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes August 13, 2020

Mayor Albert Elias called the August 13, 2020 Regular Council
Meeting to order at 7:08 PM

Councillor Clark

Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to adopt the agenda as presented.
Carried

Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to adopt the minutes of the
2020.07.09 Regular Council Meeting as presented.
Carried

Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 2020.07.28
ORG Council Meeting as presented.
Carried

No resolutions (no show)

Councillor Lybbert MOVED to amend the budget and apply for the
$50,000 Municipal Stimulus Program Capital Project Grant to be used
to install water and sewer services to currently non-serviced lots
along Main Ave from 1st Street N to 4th Street N.

Carried

e Cemetery committee - Discussed reasons for vaults
e Recreation committee - Farmers market, two communities
Going well

o Attended Chief Mountain Regional Solid Waste Authority
(CMRSWA) meeting - Truck and trailer roll over.

e Glenwood Library board Open house Sept 12th, 34 Donations
for Auction, Computer Donation

e Chinook Arch-

e Meetings with various residents this month.

e Absent

e None

e CAO Report presented as outlined in the agenda

Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to accept the councillor & CAO reports

as information.
Carried
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Financial Reports

2020.08.113

2020.08.114

2020.08.115

Correspondence

2020.08.116

Closed Meeting
2020.08.117

2020.08.118

2020.07.119

2020.07.120

Adjournment
2020.07.121

e Council reviewed the Accounts Payable Cheques for July 2020
(20190782-201907840)

Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the financial reports as
information.
Carried

e Council reviewed the 2020 Budget VS Actual Operating &
Capital Report to July 2020

Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to accept the Budget VS Actual
Operating & Capital reports as information.
Carried

e Council reviewed the Bank Reconciliation Reports for May &
June, 2020

Councillor Clark MOVED to accept the Bank Reconciliation reports as
information.
Carried

a) 2020 AUMA Convention Registration Open

b) 2020 Farm Safety Info

c) 101717 COVID Fact Sheet

d) COVID-19 Gathering Restrictions July 2020

e) Ltr to PPSA Municipalities re Alberta Police Advisory
Board

f) Police Advisory Board Bulletin

Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to accept the correspondence as
information.
Carried

Councillor Lybbert MOVED to close the meeting to the public at 8:13
PM to discuss Employee Matters per Section 24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act.
Carried

Interim CAO Kinahan left the meeting at 8:40 PM.

Mayor Elias MOVED to open the meeting to the public at 9:10 PM.
Carried

The Council Meeting resumed at 9:15 PM allowing for the public to
rejoin the meeting.

Mayor Elias MOVED to hire Carrie Kinahan as the Chief
Administrative Officer, with a 90-day probationary period.
Carried

Mayor Elias MOVED to pay the Chief Administrative Officer the
hourly wage of $28.00 per hour for 32 hours per week.
Carried

Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:20 PM.
Carried

Meeting Chair

Chief Administrative Officer
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Office

-5 s e
From: Wayne Smith <sonway8@hotmail.com>
Sent: September 8, 2020 8:22 AM
To: Office
Subject: for september 10 meeting

Dear Village Council,

I had talked to the CAO about doing a presentation at the council meeting on September 10,
as a member of the executive of the newly formed “Twin Rivers Rural Crime Watch
Association”. Since then | have traveled to the USA to visit family and cannot leave my yard
for the next two weeks. As a result, | am writing this letter asking the Village Council for
financial support as we launch this non-profit, completely volunteer association.

We have the full support of the RCMP who serve as advisors to our organization. They are
very supportive because they know that wherever a rural crime watch association is present,
the crime rate automatically decreases. With the system we are setting up, our members can
contact us about a crime or suspicious activity and it will automatically go to the RCMP and
other members of the association to make us all aware and take appropriate action. The
RCMP have mentioned that signs posted throughout our community and rural area are
deterrents in and of themselves. They also informed us that crime is moving more and more
to the rural areas.

We hope the Village Council will support us in this launch effort by donating at least $500 to
help with our start-up costs.

Thank you for your support.

Wayne Smith
Vice-President Twin Rivers Rural Crime Watch Association






August 27, 2020

TO: VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD ADMINISTRATOR

FROM: VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD LIBRARY BOARD

RE: ENTRY TO LIBRARY BY TOUGH COUNTRY

At the regular meeting of the Board on August 10, 2020 the following was addressed.

“The Village Office wants to get a key from the library for Tough Country, for when the power goes out
and such. The last time they came in to do work, they left everything in disarray. They would put a lock
box outside with the library key inside”

Linda Maerz moved that a letter be drafted and sent to The Village addressing the Library concerns on
this subject. Roxanne Kelner 2", Passed.

In the beginning we understood that this hub would be a small box mounted on the wall near the
ceiling. As it is now, it is situated in one of two research/teaching areas of our Library. It is very close to
our quiet reading area. Patrons have complained of the constant humming of the fans. The hub takes
up a lot more space than we expected it to.

The Board feels that a lockbox outside with a library key in it leaves Tough Country with no supervision
while in the Library. As stated above the Library was left in disarray when they were left unsupervised.
Valuable Librarian time was taken to bring the area back to our standards.

As it was The Village Council’s decision to put the box in the Library it is their responsibility to provide
supervised access to the Wi-Fi Hub.






Marilee Campbell

S S L= SR
From: Abe Tinney <abetinney@raymond.ca>
Sent: September 3, 2020 7:56 AM
To: Jeff Shaw; Stirling CAO; Ryan; CAO Village of Warner; James Suffredine; Kurtis Pratt;

Marilee Campbell; Murray Millward; Office Village of Hillspring;
mistakenchiefl@yahoo.ca; Shawn Hathaway; Village of Coutts; rsoup@bloodtribe.org
Subject: Chief Mountain Solid Waste

Hello everyone,

| am reaching out to the administrators of the commission membership. | would like to know if any of you have existing
concerns with the service, or if you have any questions or recommendations.

Presently, we are a tucking and landfill service provider. We are open to considering expanded service options, and we
will aim to align our service levels with industry standards and best practices. If you have any input in this regard, please
let me know.

There is work to be done to bring the operations and administration of the commission up to the level we are all used to
in our own municipalities. Over the next several months, this will be a priority for me. | am developing a business plan
with guiding principles and practices, as well as a safety program and h.r. policies -- | am implementing processes and
procedures that are consistent with what we find in our respective organizations.

My goal is to establish Chief Mountain as a regional leader/advisor for you all in all areas of municipal solid waste
management.

Thanks,

Abe Tinney | Director of Legislative Services | Town of Raymond
(p) 403.752.3322 ext. 1007 (f) 403.752.4379

RAYMOND

www.raymond.ca







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
BYLAW # 219-2020

ANIMAL CONTROL BYLAW

A BYLAW OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA TO PROVIDE FOR THE
REGULATING AND CONTROL OF WILD AND DOMESTIC ANIMALS WITHIN THE VILLAGE OF
GLENWOOD.

WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Government Act, Chapter M-26, R.S.A.
2000 and amendments thereto, provides a municipality may pass Bylaws respecting wild and
domestic Animals and activities in relation to them; and

WHEREAS the Council deems it expedient to regulate wild and domestic Animals within the
Village of Glenwood;

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Glenwood duly assembled enacts as follows:

SECTION 1. TITLE

a) This bylaw may be cited as the “Animal Control Bylaw” of the Village of Glenwood.

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS

a) “Animal” means all mammals (excluding humans), birds, reptiles, amphibians and
insects.

b) “Aggressive Dog” means any dog who has without provocation, chased, injured or bitten
any other animal or person.

c) “Designated Officer” means any person or company appointed by the Chief
Administrative Officer or Council to enforce the provisions of this Bylaw, including, but
not limited to, any member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, Bylaw Enforcement

Officer, or Community Peace Officer.

d) “Controlled Confinement” means the confinement of an animal in a fenced yard or
electric fenced yard that will not allow the animal to be at Large.

e) “Poultry” means chickens, ducks, geese, turkeys and pheasants.
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f) “Large livestock” means, but is not limited to, cattle, horses, llamas, alpacas, or animals
that generally would fall in this category but does not include dogs, cats, or other
domesticated household pets.

g) “Small livestock” means, but is not limited to, sheep, goats, or animals that generally fall
in this category but does not include dogs, cats or other domesticated household pets.

h) “Wildlife” means all wildlife as defined in the Wildlife Act or as designated in the
regulations thereto and includes: big game, birds of prey, endangered animals and
migratory game birds.

i) “Owner” means a natural person or body corporate who has legal title or ownership to
the animal, and includes any person who has possession or custody of the animal either
temporarily or permanently, or harbours the animal, or allows the animal to remain on
his premises.

j)  “Owner’s Property” means any property in which the owner of an animal has a legal or
equitable interest, or over which the owner of an animal has been given the control or
use of by the legal or equitable owner of the property, and which property shall include,
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, land, buildings, and vehicles.

k) “Permitted Property” means private property upon which the owner of an animal has
the express permission of the owner of that property to allow the owner’s animal to

occupy.

[) “Public Nuisance” means any animal that disturbs the peace of residents, damages
property and/or threatens or harasses people or animals.

m) “At Large” means an animal that is off the owner’s property or a permitted property
while not under control by a responsible person.

n) “Village” means the corporation of the Village of Glenwood, or the area contained
within the boundaries thereof, as the context requires.

o) “Chief Administrative Officer” or “CAO” means the Chief Administrative Officer of the
Village of Glenwood appointed by the Council in accordance with the provisions of the
Municipal Government Act, Chapter M-26, R.S.A. 2000 and amendments thereto.

p) “Council” means the Council of the Village of Glenwood

d) “Provincial Court” means the Provincial Court of Alberta

Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 219-2020 Mayor Initials: CAO Initials: Page 2 of 4





SECTION 3. Regulation

1. No person shall have or keep any of the following animals within the Village:
a) Wildlife
b) Poultry
c) Swine
d) Bees
e) Any poisonous animal
Any person determined to be keeping any of the above animals within Village limits will
receive a written order in which they shall be given 10 days to remove the animals(s) or
the Village will proceed to have the animal(s) removed and all associated costs will be
added to the property owner’s tax roll.

2. Three (3) large livestock or five (5) small livestock, in any combination totally a
maximum of five (5) animals are allowed per acre of land. If, however, the need arises
for a person to have more than this allotment at one given time, the CAO may approve
the request if received in writing to the Village office.

3. All animals are to be kept in controlled confinement.

4. Any animal which trespasses onto any public lands, or private lands other than the
owner’s property, or a permitted property are deemed to be “At Large” and may be
captured and confined by a Designated Officer at such place as the CAO has a
confinement agreement in place.

a) Captured animals will be released to the owner after establishment of ownership
and upon paying any fines and/or confinement fees as set out in the current Rates,
Fees & Charges Bylaw.

b) Any captured livestock remaining unclaimed after five (5) days will be reported to
the Department of Agriculture of the province of Alberta for impoundment under
the Stray Animals Act, RSA 2000, c S-20, 14(1).

5. An owner shall be responsible to keep property clean of any accumulation of feces or
refuse which is:
a) Injurious or dangerous to health, or
b) Which may hinder in any manner the prevention or suppression of disease, or
c) Issituated for so long a period of time as to become odorous.
Any property owner, who does not clean their property of an accumulation of animal
feces refuse, as defined above, will receive a written order to remove the feces or
refuse. If the order is not complied with to the satisfaction of the CAO within ten (10)
days, then the Village will proceed with the removal and all associated costs will be
added to the property owner’s tax roll.

6. An owner shall be responsible for compliance with all provincial regulations and
legislation concerning public health and the keeping of animals.
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7. An owner shall ensure that an animal does not become a public nuisance.

8. Any dog deemed to be aggressive will be reported to the RCMP for investigation in
accordance with the provisions of the Dangerous Dog Act, RSA 2000, Chapter D-3. Once
a dog is declared aggressive, it will not be allowed within Village boundaries.

Section 4. Penalties

1. Where a Designated Officer or the CAO believes that a person has contravened any
provision of this bylaw, he may commence proceedings by issuing a summons by means
of a violation ticket in accordance with Part 2 of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act,
RSA 2000, Chapter P-34.

2. When an owner fails to comply with a written notice issued by a Designated Officer or
CAO of the Village. The Village may remedy the violation at the expense of the owner.
Any unpaid expense and cost incurred by the Village may be added to the property
owner’s tax roll.

3. Any person who contravenes a provision of this Bylaw is guilty of an offence and shall be
subject to a fine as outlined in the current Rates, Fees & Charges Bylaw.

a) Where any person contravenes the same provision of this bylaw twice within one
twelve (12) month period, the specified penalty payable in respect of the third or
subsequent contravention is triple the amount shown in the current Rates, Fees &
Charges Bylaw in respect of that provision.

This bylaw shall, upon receiving third and final reading, come into effect.

Village of Glenwood Bylaw #219-2007, and all amendments thereto, is hereby repealed upon
this bylaw coming into effect.

Read a First time this day of , 2020.

Read a Second time this day of 2020.

Read a Third and Final time this day of 2020.

Albert Elias Carrie Kinahan

Mayor Chief Administrative Officer
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My Account | ConfactUs | Signin | Cart $0.00 Froncai $ CA

Uline Products Quick Order Catalog Request Special Offers About Us

f Home > AllProducts > Facilities Maintenance > Grounds Maintenance > Dog Waste System

1-800-295-5510

DOG WASTE SYSTEM

Keeps apartment landscaping, hiking trails, dog parks
and recreation areas free of dog waste.

« Sign - Large, easy-to-read refleclive aluminum.

» Dispenser - Tough powder-coated aluminum.
Locking front panel. Includes 400 bags.

« Receplacle - 18-gauge steel. Includes retainer band.
10-gallon capacity.

i DOG WASTE SYSIEM

| a Galvanized or Gieen
' MODEL SIZE WI. PRICE EACH ADD TO
Mo, | PECHIMON LXWxH ws) 1 3 CART
H-2898* Sign 12x18" 2 $36 $a3 | O}
H-2897* Dispenser 9x3x18" 7 151 142 V)
H-3491* Receplacle 11.5" Diam. x 23"H 16 241 226 | 1|
H-16624 8 ft. U-Channel Post 48 46 | Specify Color
* Mounling hardwate included
DOG WASTE BAGS
MODEL Qrv.; | BOXes/ | PRICE PER CARTON ADD TO
NO. DESCRIPTION SIZE BOX CIN. : - CART
§-21319 Uline PR 300 " $71 $71 [ }[avp)
§-15585 Dogipot® ne 93 [ J[aon]






+ Dispenser - Tough powder-coated aluminum.
Locking front panel. Includes 400 bags.

« Receptacle - 18-gauge sleel. Includes retainer band.
10-gallon capacity.

4 Galvanized or Green

DOG WASTE SYSIEM
MODEL SIZE WI. PRICE EACH ADD TO
T R LXxWxH s ) 3 CART
H-2898* Sign 12x 18" 2 $36 $33 | 0
H-2897* Dispenser 9x3x16" 7 151 142 [
H-3491* Receptacle 11.8" Diam. x 23"H 16 241 226 i
H-16624 8 . U-Channel Post 48 46 | Specity Color
* Mounting hardware included
DOG WASTE BAGS
MODEL Q1y./ | BOXEs/ | PRICE PER CARTON ADD TO
NO. DESCRIPTION SIZE BOX oM. : 5 CART
$-21319 Uline i %00 i@ $71 N [ 1[ao0]
§-15585 Dogipot® 19 93 N
DOG WASTE RECEPTACLE LINER BAGS
MODEL Q1y./ | BOXES/ | PRICE PER CARTON ADD TO
NO. DESCRIPTION SIZE Box | Cm. 1 = CART
$-20825 Receptacle Liner | 28 x 29" 50 4 $135 $110 R







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

Page 1 of 2
Cheque Listing For Council 2020-Sep-8
3:32:20PM
Cheque Invoice Cheque
Cheque # Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description Amount Amount
20190841  2020-08-06 ALBERTA ONE CALL CORPORATION PAYMENT 50.40
IN160847 ONE CALLS 50.40
20190842 2020-08-06 AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES LTD PAYMENT 1,329.26
0172-17 AUGUST BENENFITS 1,329.26
20190843  2020-08-06 ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD PAYMENT 1,089.05
2020.06 XPLORERNET, P.P., TELUS, LGAA, 1,089.05
20190844  2020-08-06 CAMPBELL, MARILEE PAYMENT 247.06
2020.07.31 TRAVEL P.P., POSTAGE, ELECTIONS 247.06
20190845 2020-08-06 CANDU AUTOMATION & CONTROL SOLUTIONS PAYMENT 215.76
1599 WATER TREATMENT PLANT 215.76
20190846  2020-08-06 CARTER, GERALD PAYMENT 41.30
2020.07.31 COUNCIL TRAVEL 41.30
20190847  2020-08-06 CHINOOK ARCH REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM PAYMENT 1,290.86
921339 JULY - DEC 2020 M MEMEBERSHIP F  1,290.86
20190848 2020-08-06 CLARK, DEBRA PAYMENT 289.80
2020.07.31 P.P. CHEESE CURDS 289.80
20190849  2020-08-06 DIGITAL CONNECTION INC. PAYMENT 311.08
268287 PHOTOCOPIES 311.08
20190850 2020-08-06 EDWARDS, JANET PAYMENT 169.92
2020.07.31 WTPLANT SAMPLES 169.92
20190851 2020-08-06 FOOTHILLS CREAMERY LTD. PAYMENT 1,706.75
1400517 ICE CREAM 925.55
1401569 ICE CREAM 781.20
20190852  2020-08-06 HARLAN FAIRBANKS PAYMENT 929.63
21111044 ICE CREAM SUPPLIES 327.44
21111362 ICE CREAM SUPPLIES 602.19
20190853  2020-08-06 K4 DISTRIBUTING PAYMENT 1,876.85
1889 ICE CREAM 490.14
1892 ICE CREAM 635.56
1902 ICE CREAM 751.15
20190854  2020-08-06 NESTLE CANADA INC. PAYMENT 1,735.65
7500956449 ICE CREAM 517.65
7500958368 ICE CREAM 548.10
7500959885 ICE CREAM 669.90
20190855 2020-08-06 PUROLATOR PAYMENT 74.59
445030289 WTP ELEMENT 74.59
20190856  2020-08-06 RMA- RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA PAYMENT 581.83
53714186 OFFICE SUP 514.17
53751107 OFFICE SUPP 4511
53751984 OFFICE SUPP 2255
20190857  2020-08-06 SHAWN COOK PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION PAYMENT 9,712.50
0-28837 2019 AUDIT 9,712.50
20190858  2020-08-06 SHIPLEY, EDWARD & SUSAN PAYMENT 144.90
2020.07.31 CHEESE CURDSSSSSS 144.90
20190859 2020-08-06 TINA'S CAFE & BAKERY PAYMENT 25.00
2020.3381458 P.P. BUNS 25.00
20190860 2020-08-06 WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO PAYMENT 220.36
5011151732 08/29/2020-09/28/2020 220.36
20190861 2020-08-13 CANADA REVENUE AGENCY PAYMENT 410.21
2020.07.31 LIBRARY PAYROLL DEDUCTINS 410.21
20190862 2020-08-13 CANADA REVENUE AGENCY PAYMENT 5,861.18
2020.08.31 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 5,861.18





VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

Page 2 of 2
Cheque Listing For Council 2020-Sep-8
3:32:20PM
Cheque Invoice Cheque
Cheque# Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description Amount  Amount
20190863 2020-08-18 ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION PAYMENT 4,254.10
20-1035054 UTILITIES 4,254.10
20190864 2020-08-18 CARDSTON COUNTY PAYMENT 394.28
IVC00000001898¢ CUSTOM SPRAYING 284.03
IVC0000019111  CEMETERY SPRAYING 110.25
20190865 2020-08-18 EDWARDS, DARRELL PAYMENT 41.30
2020.08.CEMETE CEMETERY - PICK UP BENCH 41.30
20190866 2020-08-18 FOOTHILLS CREAMERY LTD. PAYMENT 776.70
1402227 ICE CREAM 776.70
20190867 2020-08-18 K4 DISTRIBUTING PAYMENT 636.36
1896 ICE CREAM 636.36
20190868 2020-08-18 LETHBRIDGE TRUCK TERMINALS PAYMENT 86.79
186531 CHEMICAL DELIVERY 86.79
20190869  2020-08-18 MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC. PAYMENT 304.51
20201067 SEPTEMBER SUPPORT 304.51
20190870  2020-08-18 NESTLE CANADA INC. PAYMENT 365.40
7500961672 ICE CREAM 365.40
20190871 2020-08-18 PINCHER CREEK CO-OP PAYMENT 170.59
00253768D P.P. & SHOP TOOLS 52.31
00259122A SHOP TOOLS 65.82
00262003D P.P LAWNS 52.46
20190872 2020-08-18 RMA- RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA PAYMENT 136.02
AB010386 SANITIZER FOR SPRAY UNIT 136.02
20190873  2020-08-18 TWINPRO INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS PAYMENT 531.39
34137 W. PLANT CHEMICAL & DRUMS 531.39
20190874  2020-08-18 VAN DAN'S PAYMENT 135.70
2020-42-40-41 WPLANT, MAINTENANCE, 135.70
20190875 2020-08-18 GIBB, CONNIE PAYMENT 320.00
BY-ELECTION  GIBB- RETURNING OFFICER JULY/ 2 320.00
20190876 2020-08-31 HUNSPERGER, PERRY
20190877  2020-08-31 EDWARDS, JANET
20190878  2020-08-31 KINAHAN, CARRIE
20190879  2020-08-31 GOETZ, CALVIN
20190880 2020-08-31 ELIAS, JONAS
20190881 2020-08-31 ROLFSON, DAVID
20190882  2020-08-31 CAMPBELL, ELIZA M
20190883 2020-08-31 PETERSON , KARA
20190884  2020-08-31 CLARK, DEBRA F
20190885 2020-08-31 THIESSEN, EVA
20190886 2020-08-31 RAY, SAMUEL
20190887  2020-08-31 GOETZ, ASHLYN
20190888  2020-08-31 RAY, HANNAH LOVE
20190889 2020-08-31 GOETZ, JADEN

*** End of Report ***

Total 56,214.58






VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL

Page 1 of 10
2020-Sep-8
3:45:11PM

General Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 2020 Budget 2020 Budget
Ledger Actual Remaining % Remaining $
Tax Revenue
1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (5,520.07) (5,847.32) (6,000.00) (5,829.06) 2.84 (170.94)
1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (49,488.39) (52,143.99) (53,000.00) (49,550.53) 6.50 (3,449.47)
1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (12,961.37) (14,004.13) (13,900.00) (16,244.27) (16.86) 2,344.27
1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (217,615.50) (227,298.55) (233,500.00) (228,319.07) 2.21 (5,180.93)
1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (21,706.20) (22,805.99) (23,300.00) (22,800.00) 2.14 (500.00)
1-00-00-00-00-130 Taxes - Policing 0.00 0.00 (5,585.00) 0.00 100.00 (5,585.00)
*  TOTAL Tax Revenue (307,291.53) (322,099.98) (335,285.00) (322,742.93) 3.74 (12,542.07)
General Government Revenue
1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (350.00) (1,221.00) (300.00) (1,000.00) (233.33) 700.00
1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (266.55) (172.05) (180.00) (211.15) (17.30) 31.15
1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (50.00) (50.00) (100.00) (50.00) 50.00 (50.00)
1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (160.00) (280.00) (240.00) (210.00) 12.50 (30.00)
1-12-00-00-00-561 Xplornet (2,788.80) (2,970.46) (2,000.00) (2,258.20) (12.91) 258.20
1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (4,370.61) (1,893.08) (4,000.00) (2,383.46) 40.41 (1,616.54)
1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (3,322.30) (18,354.44) (9,000.00) (12,087.31) (34.30) 3,087.31
1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (3,153.87) (5,804.40) (3,500.00) (1,707.72) 51.20 (1,792.28)
*  TOTAL General Gov't Revenue (14,462.13) (30,745.43) (19,320.00) (19,907.84) (3.04) 587.84
Operating Grant Revenue
1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (9,345.03) (1,500.00) (2,500.00) 679.00 127.16 (3,179.00)
1-00-00-00-00-751 GRANTS - ACP INTERMUNICIPAL (17,354.25) (4,414.89) (1,000.00) 0.00 100.00 (1,000.00)
1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,832.00) (34,147.00) (34,000.00) (31,607.00) 7.03 (2,393.00)
*  TOTAL Operating Grant Revenue (61,531.28) (40,061.89) (37,500.00) (30,928.00) 17.53 (6,572.00)
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Protective Services Revenue
1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Rev - NSF, Fines, Lease (665.00) (35.00) (200.00) (22.00) 89.00 (178.00)
* TOTAL Protective Services Rev (665.00) (35.00) (200.00) (22.00) 89.00 (178.00)
Transportation Service Revenue
1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (400.00) (110.00) (200.00) (276.79) (38.39) 76.79
1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (80.00) (400.00) (100.00) (80.00) 20.00 (20.00)
* TOTAL Trans Service Revenue (480.00) (510.00) (300.00) (356.79) (18.93) 56.79
Water Revenue
1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install 0.00 (5,000.00) (1,000.00) (3,000.00) (200.00) 2,000.00
1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (240.00) (270.00) (100.00) (150.00) (50.00) 50.00
1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (105,061.11) (123,579.31) (110,200.00) (82,749.45) 24.90 (27,450.55)
1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,594.04) (3,578.42) (3,000.00) (3,452.56) (15.08) 452.56
1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (411.91) (222.93) (500.00) (237.02) 52.59 (262.98)
*  TOTAL Water Revenue (109,307.06) (132,650.66) (114,800.00) (89,589.03) 21.96 (25,210.97)
Irrigation Revenue
1-40-00-00-00-410 Sales - Irrigation (9,522.50) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (12,096.80) (18.59) 1,896.80
*  TOTAL Irrigation Revenue (9,522.50) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (12,096.80) (18.60) 1,896.80
Sewer Revenue
1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install 0.00 (2,000.00) (1,000.00) (3,000.00) (200.00) 2,000.00
1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (26,831.66) (22,578.00) (24,000.00) (14,692.00) 38.78 (9,308.00)
1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,092.75) (3,126.35) (3,000.00) (2,238.80) 25.37 (761.20)
1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (125.00) 96.87 (3,875.00)
*  TOTAL Sewer Revenue (33,924.41) (31,704.35) (32,000.00) (20,055.80) 37.33 (11,944.20)
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Waste Management Revenue
1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,015.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (15,254.67) (27.12) 3,254.67
*  TOTAL Waste Mgmt Rev (12,015.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (15,254.67) (27.12) 3,254.67
Cemetery Revenue
1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (1,260.00) (1,130.00) (600.00) (25.00) 95.83 (575.00)
1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery - Donations (2,040.00) (1,250.00) (500.00) (2,497.74) (399.54) 1,997.74
1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution 0.00 0.00 (1,375.00) 0.00 100.00 (1,375.00)
* TOTAL Cemetery Revenue (3,300.00) (2,380.00) (2,475.00) (2,522.74) (1.93) 47.74
Recreation & Culture Revenue
1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,175.00) (1,988.75) (1,000.00) (300.00) 70.00 (700.00)
1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (100.00) (399.50) (100.00) 0.00 100.00 (100.00)
1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (42,867.91) (45,806.31) (47,600.00) (40,865.37) 14.14 (6,734.63)
1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days funds-fireworks donations (200.00) (2,950.00) (3,000.00) (408.45) 86.38 (2,591.55)
1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Rental Revenue 0.00 (1,400.00) (2,400.00) (1,400.00) 41.66 (1,000.00)
*  TOTAL Rec & Culture Rev (44,342.91) (52,544.56) (54,100.00) (42,973.82) 20.57 (11,126.18)
Planning & Development Revenue
1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance (1,350.00) 415.00 (200.00) (5,465.00) (2,632.50) 5,265.00
1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers From Reserves - Operating 0.00 0.00 (3,000.00) 0.00 100.00 (3,000.00)
*  TOTAL Planning & Development R (1,350.00) 415.00 (3,200.00) (5,465.00) (70.78) 2,265.00
*  TOTAL Revenue (598,191.82) (636,601.19) (621,380.00) (561,915.42) 9.57 (59,464.58)






VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL

Page 4 of 10
2020-Sep-8
3:45:11PM

General Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 2020 Budget 2020 Budget
Ledger Actual Remaining % Remaining $
Council Expenses
2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums 10,050.00 10,700.00 11,000.00 4,350.00 60.45 6,650.00
2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel 6,897.07 3,826.16 6,000.00 1,5692.14 73.46 4,407.86
2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc 3,772.50 2,322.89 3,500.00 397.96 88.62 3,102.04
*  TOTAL Council Expenses 20,719.57 16,849.05 20,500.00 6,340.10 69.07 14,159.90
Administration Expenses

2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin 117,586.80 84,671.54 89,100.00 60,142.58 32.49 28,957.42
2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO 3,838.92 2,895.42 4,000.00 1,401.80 64.95 2,598.20
2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin 4,596.92 6,119.31 6,200.00 4,273.52 31.07 1,926.48
2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin 14,869.79 15,592.87 13,200.00 11,257.76 14.71 1,942.24
2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin 2,063.23 2,5651.22 2,500.00 2,157.04 13.71 342.96
2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census 409.03 0.00 0.00 329.50 0.00 (329.50)
2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training - ADMIN 1,823.11 1,366.96 5,000.00 500.00 90.00 4,500.00
2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Land Line Admin 1,003.01 1,044.19 1,500.00 618.43 58.77 881.57
2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Land Line Admin 779.87 891.36 1,000.00 528.66 47.13 471.34
2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin 5,927.09 5,863.37 6,600.00 5,037.08 23.68 1,562.92
2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin 33,559.89 34,959.05 33,300.00 21,880.09 34.29 11,419.91
2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin 2,490.83 2,056.94 2,500.00 1,010.87 59.56 1,489.13
2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin 200.59 1,510.48 600.00 791.94 (31.99) (191.94)
2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin 17,333.80 13,446.10 13,800.00 14,241.85 (3.20) (441.85)
2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles 236.00 90.00 200.00 65.00 67.50 135.00
2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Bldg Maintenance Admin 729.03 505.83 800.00 264.53 66.93 535.47
2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin 7,407.51 7,927.50 8,200.00 5,932.50 27.65 2,267.50
2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin 2,077.73 4,758.90 2,750.00 1,895.55 31.07 854.45
2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,300.00 1,250.00 3.84 50.00
2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power 2,530.90 2,685.91 2,750.00 1,702.16 38.10 1,047.84
2-12-00-00-00-541 Administration Utilities Gas 1,280.00 1,413.95 1,500.00 1,044.74 30.35 455.26
2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin 2,677.87 2,729.48 2,750.00 799.23 70.93 1,950.77
2-12-00-00-00-999 Adm - Amortization 219,863.43 178,644.74 224,400.00 0.00 100.00 224,400.00
*  TOTAL Administration Expenses 444,535.35 372,975.12 423,950.00 137,124.83 67.66 286,825.17
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Protective Services Expenses
2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages 497.74 250.00 1,000.00 150.00 85.00 850.00
2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire 0.87 0.00 50.00 0.00 100.00 50.00
2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc 2,332.54 361.63 2,000.00 432.02 78.39 1,567.98
2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies 95.41 0.00 50.00 0.00 100.00 50.00
2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power 1,644.37 2,092.38 1,950.00 1,454.50 25.41 495.50
2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas 1,906.33 2,404.72 1,900.00 1,843.81 2.95 56.19
2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition 6,506.64 6,104.64 11,300.00 6,125.70 45.79 5,174.30
2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services 836.61 1,150.24 1,200.00 592.50 50.62 607.50
2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services 600.00 600.00 500.00 0.00 100.00 500.00
* TOTAL Protective Services Exp 14,420.51 12,963.61 19,950.00 10,598.53 46.87 9,351.47
Shop Expenses

2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool 3,120.67 3,101.60 2,700.00 2,112.91 21.74 587.09
2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool 187.30 197.70 200.00 152.16 23.92 47.84
2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool 156.02 1,101.66 200.00 711.64 (255.82) (511.64)
2-31-00-00-00-110 Village Maintenance Wages 15,716.39 15,508.12 13,700.00 10,564.34 22.88 3,135.66
2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main 936.58 988.33 900.00 760.85 15.46 139.15
2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits VIg Maint 780.46 970.94 1,000.00 472.89 52.71 527.11
2-31-00-00-00-250 VIg Maint Contracted Services 2,075.00 228.64 2,000.00 0.00 100.00 2,000.00
2-31-00-00-00-510 VIg Maint Tools, Hardware, Op 1,230.39 993.12 2,000.00 636.12 68.19 1,363.88
2-31-00-00-00-524 VIg Maint Equip Supplies 2,040.54 2,298.06 2,000.00 349.07 82.54 1,650.93
2-31-00-00-00-526 VIg Maint Equip Supply Tractor 987.73 920.01 800.00 664.62 16.92 135.38
2-31-00-00-00-527 Vig Maint Fuel 4,399.34 2,547.96 3,100.00 0.00 100.00 3,100.00
2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear 341.45 151.32 500.00 333.57 33.28 166.43
2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop 778.44 589.30 900.00 528.66 41.26 371.34
2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone Foreman 907.97 1,292.00 900.00 631.43 29.84 268.57
* TOTAL Shop Expenses 33,658.28 30,888.76 30,900.00 17,918.26 42.01 12,981.74
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Road & Street Expenses
2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Streets & Roads 16,531.47 17,839.28 17,200.00 13,078.14 23.96 4,121.86
2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deduct Streets & Roads 1,017.39 1,041.20 1,100.00 919.34 16.42 180.66
2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deduct Streets & Roads 820.13 970.94 1,200.00 472.89 60.59 727.11
2-32-00-00-00-250 Streets & Roads Contracted Services 7,5635.84 1,177.00 2,000.00 1,403.00 29.85 597.00
2-32-00-00-00-260 Streets & Roads Goods & Servcies 0.00 482.62 1,000.00 756.00 24.40 244.00
2-32-00-00-00-530 Streets & Roads Maint Materials 844.99 3,001.28 1,000.00 0.00 100.00 1,000.00
2-32-00-00-00-540 Streetlights 10,559.86 12,329.42 12,000.00 8,305.64 30.78 3,694.36
*  TOTAL Road & Street Expenses 37,309.68 36,841.74 35,500.00 24,935.01 29.76 10,564.99
Irrigation Expenses
2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation 7,729.82 8,534.35 6,900.00 6,524.32 5.44 375.68
2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services 0.00 0.00 500.00 700.00 (40.00) (200.00)
2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint 329.97 973.75 750.00 35.78 95.22 714.22
2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Ultilities Power 3,248.23 2,598.47 3,600.00 1,182.50 67.15 2,417.50
*  TOTAL Irrigation Expenses 11,308.02 12,106.57 11,750.00 8,442.60 28.15 3,307.40
Water Expenses
2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water 22,803.75 21,831.84 29,500.00 14,409.06 51.15 15,090.94
2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water 1,730.48 1,763.93 2,600.00 1,381.01 46.88 1,218.99
2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water 1,092.62 1,846.51 2,300.00 904.03 60.69 1,395.97
2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel 1,823.34 3,553.10 3,000.00 1,544.98 48.50 1,455.02
2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant 1,078.35 1,191.36 1,100.00 528.66 51.94 571.34
2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services 7,983.88 12,015.10 11,000.00 10,645.93 3.21 354.07
2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint 1,968.90 2,451.60 7,600.00 3,788.26 50.15 3,811.74
2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc 22,947.95 31.14 1,500.00 0.00 100.00 1,500.00
2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service 6,196.25 4,464.17 6,500.00 4,673.21 28.10 1,826.79
2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power 10,156.53 12,076.98 10,700.00 8,025.86 24.99 2,674.14
2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas 3,428.59 3,5645.23 3,800.00 2,743.83 27.79 1,056.17
2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount 3,489.50 3,655.62 3,500.00 56.00 98.40 3,444.00
*  TOTAL Water Expenses 84,700.14 68,426.58 83,100.00 48,700.83 41.39 34,399.17
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Sewer Expenses
2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer 3,020.67 3,101.60 2,700.00 2,112.91 21.74 587.09
2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer 187.30 197.70 200.00 152.16 23.92 47.84
2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer 156.02 276.80 200.00 150.70 24.65 49.30
2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services 19,819.86 2,481.70 5,250.00 103.82 98.02 5,146.18
2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 100.00 250.00
2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 100.00 250.00
*  TOTAL Sewer Expenses 23,183.85 6,057.80 8,850.00 2,519.59 71.53 6,330.41
Waste Management Expenses
2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services 0.00 0.00 250.00 3,395.50 (1,258.20) (3,145.50)
2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services 50.48 0.00 250.00 0.00 100.00 250.00
2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition - CMRSWA 6,747.37 7,792.56 7,100.00 4,093.78 42.34 3,006.22
2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station 0.00 3,126.80 3,300.00 4,050.48 (22.74) (750.48)
*  TOTAL Waste Mgmt Expenses 6,797.85 10,919.36 10,900.00 11,539.76 (5.87) (639.76)
Cemetery Expenses
2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery 1,688.45 3,346.52 2,100.00 4,411.52 (110.07) (2,311.52)
2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services 142.83 200.00 3,250.00 4,841.99 (48.98) (1,591.99)
2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power 947.99 1,006.25 1,100.00 673.79 38.74 426.21
2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves 0.00 0.00 500.00 130.65 73.87 369.35
*  TOTAL Cemetery Expenses 2,779.27 4,552.77 6,950.00 10,057.95 (44.72) (3,107.95)
Planning & Development Expense
2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 100.00 500.00
2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS 1,659.00 1,681.12 1,730.00 6,105.60 (252.92) (4,375.60)
2-76-00-00-00-252 ORRSC Requisition 3,288.28 3,863.00 5,200.00 0.00 100.00 5,200.00
*  TOTAL Planning & Dev Expenses 4,947.28 5,544.12 7,430.00 6,105.60 17.83 1,324.40
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Parks & Recreation Expenses
2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 100.00 500.00
2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks 3,000.00 3,150.00 3,000.00 0.00 100.00 3,000.00
2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec 4,396.15 5,978.61 2,000.00 5,874.42 (193.72) (3,874.42)
2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (VIg USE ONLY) 1,355.31 1,142.36 6,150.00 0.00 100.00 6,150.00
2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power 951.94 1,064.68 1,000.00 727.88 27.21 27212
2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas 730.00 855.88 800.00 634.04 20.74 165.96
* TOTAL Parks & Rec Expenses 10,433.40 12,191.53 13,450.00 7,236.34 46.20 6,213.66
Library Expenses
2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services 968.38 886.57 1,000.00 1,155.90 (15.59) (155.90)
2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services 0.00 10.45 500.00 75.13 84.97 424.87
2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support 18,000.00 15,000.00 15,300.00 15,000.00 1.96 300.00
2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library 2,480.60 2,531.16 2,500.00 2,581.72 (3.26) (81.72)
* TOTAL Library Expenses 21,448.98 18,428.18 19,300.00 18,812.75 2.52 487.25
Community Hall Expenses
2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Hall 2,900.00 1,275.00 2,700.00 350.00 87.03 2,350.00
2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Hall Contracted Service 488.95 315.00 500.00 0.00 100.00 500.00
2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Hall Goods & Service 954.03 1,601.89 1,000.00 1,321.01 (32.10) (321.01)
2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Hall Utilities Power 1,920.75 2,108.79 1,500.00 1,587.31 (5.82) (87.31)
2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Hall Utilities Gas 1,240.96 1,456.03 1,125.00 974.46 13.38 150.54
* TOTAL Community Hall Expenses 7,504.69 6,756.71 6,825.00 4,232.78 37.98 2,592.22
Pioneer Parlour Expenses
2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour 18,973.75 22,604.66 18,500.00 17,076.23 7.69 1,423.77
2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP 694.03 1,014.14 500.00 741.83 (48.36) (241.83)
2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services 75.94 1,432.00 1,500.00 0.00 100.00 1,500.00
2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses (Bldg) 939.03 2,786.58 1,000.00 1,199.16 (19.91) (199.16)
2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services 17,203.67 21,312.83 19,900.00 19,738.93 0.80 161.07
2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power 1,598.36 1,702.28 1,700.00 885.40 47.91 814.60
2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas 834.76 1,019.48 1,100.00 761.92 30.73 338.08
2-74-03-00-00-810 Pioneer Parlour Merchant Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,318.81 0.00 (3,318.81)
* TOTAL Pioneer Parlour Expenses 40,319.54 51,871.97 44,200.00 43,722.28 1.08 477.72
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General Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 2020 Budget 2020 Budget
Ledger Actual Remaining % Remaining $
Post Office Expenses
2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 100.00 500.00
2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas 0.00 0.00 375.00 0.00 100.00 375.00
* TOTAL Post Office Exp 0.00 0.00 875.00 0.00 100.00 875.00
Community Support Requisitions
2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing 0.00 0.00 5,585.00 0.00 100.00 5,585.00
2-62-00-00-00-206 Com Services: Communities in Bloom 2,925.00 1,788.75 2,000.00 119.31 94.03 1,880.69
2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Req/Exp/Donate 1,500.00 1,428.57 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00
2-62-00-00-00-209 Com Services: Glenwood Seniors Req 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00
2-62-00-00-00-210 Com Services: FCSS Requisition 2,446.00 2,446.00 2,446.00 2,446.00 0.00 0.00
2-62-00-00-00-750 Com Services: Farm Safety Ctr Donation 0.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00
2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Brd Expenses (Vig DON'T USE ) 2,818.85 801.01 1,500.00 0.00 100.00 1,500.00
2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation 5,520.09 5,870.52 6,000.00 5,828.54 2.85 171.46
2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist 4,203.18 4,553.30 4,400.00 4,689.90 (6.58) (289.90)
2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation 68,249.59 71,341.78 73,100.00 32,919.38 54.96 40,180.62
2-98-00-00-00-116 DESIGNATED INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY 20.37 4717 47.00 0.00 100.00 47.00
(DIP)

2-12-00-00-00-763 General Reserves transfer from Operating 0.00 0.00 3,972.00 0.00 100.00 3,972.00
* TOTAL Community Support Requis 88,183.08 89,077.10 101,350.00 48,303.13 52.34 53,046.87
** TOTAL Expenses 852,249.49 756,450.97 845,780.00 406,590.34 51.93 439,189.66
***  TOTAL Revenues Over Expenses 254,057.67 119,849.78 224,400.00 (155,325.08) 169.22 379,725.08
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General Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 2020 Budget 2020 Budget
Ledger Actual Remaining % Remaining $
Capital Grants Revenue
1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (88,225.34) (91,802.29) (211,850.00) 0.00 100.00 (211,850.00)
1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF/NDCC (90,569.74) 0.00 (130,000.00) 0.00 100.00 (130,000.00)
* TOTAL Cap Grants Rev (178,795.08) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) 0.00 100.00 (341,850.00)
** TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE (178,795.08) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) 0.00 100.00 (341,850.00)
Capital Expenses
2-12-00-00-00-762 Admin - Transfer to Capital 0.00 0.00 10,750.00 10,454.20 275 295.80
2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Serv-Transfer to Capital 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 100.00 4,000.00
2-32-00-00-00-762 Strts & Rds - Transfer to Capital 0.00 0.00 181,400.00 2,600.00 98.56 178,800.00
2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 3,500.95 29.98 1,499.05
2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital 0.00 0.00 123,700.00 0.00 100.00 123,700.00
2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 100.00 12,000.00
2-74-02-00-00-762 Community Hall - Transfer to Capital 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 100.00 5,000.00
*  TOTAL Capital Expenses 0.00 0.00 341,850.00 16,555.15 95.16 325,294.85
*  TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 341,850.00 16,555.15 95.16 325,294.85
***  Revenues Over Expense/Capital (178,795.08) (91,802.29) 0.00 16,555.15 0.00 (16,555.15)

*** End of Report ***
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Municipal Notification of Future Changes to Emergency Medical
Services

Over the past several years Emergency Medical Services (EMS) resources in your community
were dispatched by one of our municipal partners through one of the AHS satellite dispatch
centres.

Following a recommendation of the Ernst and Young Alberta Health Services (AHS) Review, AHS
EMS will be moving forward with plans to consolidate 911 EMS dispatch services.

Four municipally-run satellite sites, Calgary, Lethbridge, Red Deer and the Municipality of Wood
Buffalo, will be consolidated into one of the three AHS EMS dispatch sites: the Northern
Communications Centre (NCC, in Peace River) and the Southern Communications Centre (SCC,
in Calgary) and Central Communications Centre (CCC, in Edmonton). Termination for all four
sites requires 180 days’ notice. Notice was given today.

Patient safety is at the core of every decision AHS makes. This includes our approach to
dispatching of EMS services across Alberta. The Ernst and Young recommendation validates
earlier reports, including one by the Health Quality Council of Alberta, supporting dispatch
consolidation for improved patient care and health integration. Consolidation of the four
satellite dispatch centres will save over $6 million annually. This is a fiscally responsible
transition that will maintain patient safety and ensure consistency and sustainability of dispatch
services across all communities.

A province-wide EMS dispatch system is more efficient and allows better co-ordination of all
resources, allowing EMS to send the nearest available ambulance to a patient regardless of any
geographic boundaries. 911 callers will notice absolutely no change.

We look forward to continued collaboration with our municipal partners and the Government
as we phase in this transition.

South Communication Centre « North Communication Centre ¢ Central Communication Centre
Alberta Health Service, Emergency Medical Services, Dispatch Communications & Deployment

www.albertahealthservices.ca
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Marilee Campbell

R N |
From: Emilie Nolet <emilie.nolet@gov.ab.ca> on behalf of Paul Wynnyk
<Paul Wynnyk@gov.ab.ca>
Sent: August 27, 2020 3:28 PM
Subject: Alberta Municipal Affairs 2019-20 Annual Report

Good afternoon,
I am pleased to share the Ministry of Municipal Affairs’ 2019-20 Annual Report with you.

This latest report provides a comprehensive review of the programs and initiatives we have undertaken over the past
year to build stronger communities and make life better for Albertans. It also outlines the ministry’s extraordinary
efforts as it responded, and continues to respond, to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The ability, at both the provincial and municipal levels, to deal with the impacts of a pandemic and continue to meet the
needs of Albertans is a testament to the dedication and professionalism of this ministry and municipal officials.

This annual report highlights many of the ministry’s accomplishments, opportunities, and challenges in 2019/20,

including:

e implementing a red tape reduction plan to ensure the ministry’s current and new regulations are free of
unnecessary red tape, as required by the Red Tape Reduction Act, and an ongoing review of programs and services
to ensure the best possible outcomes are being achieved for Albertans and businesses;

e continuing to work with municipalities to advance greater intermunicipal collaboration in regional planning and
service delivery, and greater accountability;

e providing Alberta communities with funding through several different programs, including the Municipal
Sustainability Initiative;

e continuing to implement centralized industrial property assessment, expected to be completed in 2021;

e continuing to support the four quasi-judicial boards in their work adjudicating on matters relating to land rights and
property ownership;

e reducing the regulatory burden in the safety codes system without compromising public safety;

e supporting public libraries through investments made in internet access and digital content, such as ebooks and
audio books, which have provided Albertans with sources of entertainment, learning, and comfort during the
required isolation; and

e co-ordinating the government’s non-health-related response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and other emergencies
and disasters.

This, and more, is covered in our results analysis, performance measures, and financial information. You will see how
actions and decisions connect to goals and key strategies, and how Municipal Affairs is progressing and adopting lessons
learned. | invite you to look through our annual report online at: https://open.alberta.ca/publications/1925-9247,

I extend my sincere thanks to you and all our partners. My staff and | look forward to our continued collaboration.

Paul.

Paul Wynnyk

Deputy Minister 18" floor, Commerce Place
Municipal Affairs 10155-102 Street

Government of Alberta Edmonton, AB T5J 4L4






3105 - 16" Avenue North
Lethbridge, Alberta T1H 5E8

. Phone: (403) 329-1344
i o _ Toll-Free: 1-844-279-8760
E-mail: admin@orrsc.com
OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION Website: WWW.orrse.com
AGENDA - 2 (2020)
OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION AUG D
ANNUAL GENERAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 24 2079
Thursday, September 3, 2020 — 7:00 p.m.
ORRSC Conference Room
3105 - 16" Avenue North, Lethbridge (rear parking lot & entrance)
MASKS ARE REQUIRED — CHAIRS WILL BE PLACED 6 FEET APART.
If you prefer to connect remotely, please email admin@orrsc by August 31.
1. Approval of Agenda — September 3, 2020 ...iiviiiieiieiiiei st s s ssrr s e s b e re e saaer s
2. Approval of Minutes — March 5, 2020 .......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiet e e e ee e e e ee e (attachment)

3. Business Arising from the Minutes
4. STAFF PRESENTATION — Jordan Thomas, GIS Analyst — “Drone Operation Presentation”

5. Reports

(@) Executive COMMILTEE REPOIT ...eviriiiieireiieiieeeesieree et e e ene s (attachment)

6. Business

(a) Draft ORRSC 2019 Annual Report and Financial Statements........ccccceeeveeciiecieeeninennns (attachment)
(b) Regional Services Commission — Amendments to Part 15.1 of the MGA ................... (attachment)
(o) IR - 1 A1 T = = OSSR
(o ) 0oV T Bt s T U T o OSSR
(@) Subdivision ACtiVtY —2020 ..esmisrmsssmimmisssvvsivnis s saiamvis i (attachment)

7. Accounts

(a) Summary of Balance Sheet and Statement of Income for the
7-month period: January 1 to July 31, 2020...cccciiiiiiiiieieecrreeeeeee e (attachment)

8. Adjournment — Next Meeting December 3, 2020 .......ccceccveriieiiiee e erieeesresesrees e e saee s saeeesaneessaeessns










OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION

MINUTES - 1 (2020)

GENERAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Thursday, March 5, 2020 — 7:00 p.m.
ORRSC Conference Room (3105 - 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
Kevyn Stevenson ..o, Village of Arrowwood Brad Koch (absent) ....cccoveevrevearennns Village of Lomond
Delbert Bodnarek (absent) ............ Village of Barnwell Richard Van Ee....cccccovevivecnianinnenne Town of Magrath
Ed'Welstrai i nmimmisiniiimsesin Village of Barons Pegay LOSEY . irmsinsarimssnrsnsnsasanin Town of Milk River
TOM ROSE isvvsnssansinmsmiimasiigis Town of Bassano Sheldon Walker (absent).......coceeerrvvnnn. Village of Milo
Norman Gerestein.......cccocvveeeeeiciieene City of Brooks Beryl West (absent) ....occeeeeeiinicnnenn Town of Nanton
JIM BESTer v Cardston County Clarence AMUlUNg.....cccceveivvineninennn County of Newell
Dennis Barnes - alternate.............. Town of Cardston Marinus de LeeuW........cceeevvrnne Village of Nobleford
Peggy Hovde (absent)........c....... Village of Carmangay Henry de Kok (absent).............. Town of Picture Butte
Jamie Smith (absent) .....occovvvveenne Village of Champion Bev Everts (absent)........ccceeueue. M.D. of Pincher Creek
Doug MacPherson (absent) ......... Town of Claresholm Don Anderberg......ccccvvvecivennnns Town Pincher Creek
Butch Pauls (absent)..........ccceevuvenie Town of Coaldale Ronald Davis (absent)....ccccceeerueenne M.D. of Ranchland
Elizabeth Christensen................... Town of Coalhurst Stewart FOSS:uiwnammaimmsis Town of Raymond
Tanya SMith.....oveeeieniiiiecieee. Village of Coutts DON NOFBY .o Town of Stavely
Warren Mickels (absent) ................. Village of Cowley Matthew FOSS.....ccccvvieirieiireeiiieenns Village of Stirling
Dave Filipuzzi s Mun. Crowsnest Pass Jennifer CroWSON i n wmien massasroim M.D. of Taber
DEAN ' Ward o Mun. Crowsnest Pass Margaret Plumtree (absent)............ Town of Vauxhall
Kole Steinley....c.ooeviviiveiieiinine Village of Duchess Jason Schneider........ccvivniiniiniienns Vulcan County
Gordon Wolstenholme........... Town of Fort Macleod Lyle Magnuson .......ccceeeeeeeeeniencenne Town of Vulcan
Gerry Carter..orvnrnneersiererannens Village of Glenwood Morgan Rockenbach - alternate ... County of Warner
Suzanne French (absent) ............. Village of Hill Spring Marty Kirby ..cooocovveriiiiiiiiiiinins Village of Warner
Morris Zeinstra (absent) ........cc..... Lethbridge County Maryanne Sandberg - alternate...M.D. Willow Creek

STAFF:
LenzZe KUIPET .oocveereeeeee e Director Gavin Scott . Senior Planner
Diane Horvath ..o, Senior Planner Barb JOhnson.....cccevvvevivncrnennne. Executive Secretary
Steve HarbV s mannasamnmannmns Senior Planner

AGENDA:

1. Approval of Agenda — March 5, 2020 . ....coiiimiiiiiriririrnrie e se s asessseessrre e ssre s s sressneessssessresssnssesanes

2. Approval of Minutes — December 5, 2009 ...c.coociiviiiiiiiiiiciiiri e (attachment)
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3. Business Arising from the IMINULES .......o.oviiciiiii e sre s b e b b aes

4. GUEST SPEAKER -

SHANNON FRANK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — OLDMAN WATERSHED COUNCIL
“An Overview of the Oldman Watershed Council, Current Projects & Watershed Health”

5. Reports
(@) - Executive COMMITEEE REPOIT cvviiieeiieer sttt e et eeee e ea ettt e et seae s saeeerteens {attachment)

6. Business
(a) Review of Fee Ceilings and Floors for Planning and GIS SErviCes ......occcvvvvveiieiireenreinennn e
{(b] Change in-Membershipii i s e i vy s s e s
(c) Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Update.........cccocveeceiieeeerieee et seea
(d) Printing & Mailing of Agenda Packages for Board of Directors’ Meetings .......cc.cceevviviviiiiiieninnnn.

7. Accounts
(a) Summary of Balance Sheet and Statement of Income for the
12-month period: January 1 - December 31, 2019 ....oooiiieeiiiiiicceiee e (attachment)

8. Adjournment — Next MeetiNg JUNE 4, 2020 ....ccciiiieiiii e eeciriee e eees st rent e e e s s s s easbaaereeseesesentesaeesssannes

CHAIR GORDON WOLSTENHOLME CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:02 P.M.

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by: Tom Rose
THAT the Board of Directors approve the agenda of March 5, 2020, as presented. CARRIED

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Moved by: Peggy Losey
THAT the Board of Directors approves the minutes of December 5, 2019, as presented. CARRIED

3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

None.
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GUEST SPEAKER -

SHANNON FRANK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — OLDMAN WATERSHED COUNCIL
“An Overview of the Oldman Watershed Council, Current Projects & Watershed Health”

Shannon Frank, who has been with the Oldman Watershed Council for the past 10 years, gave an
informative presentation on the purpose, goals and activities of the organization.

The Oldman Watershed Council (OWC) is a not-for-profit organization in Southern Alberta, Canada.
They are one of 11 Watershed Advisory and Planning Councils in Alberta, mandated by the provincial
government to provide an independent voice for watershed management and health under the
Province's Water For Life strategy.

The Council consists of the staff and OWC members who work collaboratively with all stakeholders
to improve the Oldman river watershed by:

e improving and sharing knowledge

e building and strengthening stakeholder partnerships

e providing a science-based forum for all voices to be heard

e promoting and facilitating community and institutional action and stewardship
e developing and implementing integrated land and water plans.

The Council is governed by a Board of Directors who are comprised of nineteen representatives from
various stakeholder sectors, and four members at large.

The OWC was formed in September 2004, when the Oldman River Basin Water Quality Initiative
(Initiative) merged with the Oldman Basin Advisory Council (BAC). When the Province's ‘Water For
Life’ strategy was released, these two groups combined to provide a diverse partnership
knowledgeable in all areas of watershed management, including sustainable water management and
land use practices in the Oldman Basin.

The Government's Water For Life Action Plan includes three goals that form the basis for policy
direction and reflect social, economic, and environmental influences.

Water For Life's 3 Goals:
e Safe secure drinking water
e Healthy aquatic ecosystems

e Reliable quality water supplies for a sustainable economy

For more information, contact: Oldman Watershed Council
319 - 6 Street South
Lethbridge, AB T1J 2C7
403-330-1346
 info@oldmanwatershed.ca
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REPORTS

(a) Executive Committee Report

e The Executive Committee Report for the meetings of November 21, 2019 & January 9 and
February 13, 2020 was circulated with the agenda. Chair Gordon Wolstenholme asked if
there were any questions regarding the report and there was no response.

BUSINESS

(a) Review of Fee Ceilings and Floors for Planning and GIS Services

e A motion was passed at the last Board of Directors’ meeting on December 5, 2019 directing
administration and the Executive Committee to review the fee ceiling for both Planning and
GIS services. At the January 9, 2020 Executive meeting, the Director was asked to explain
the rationale behind our current fee structure at the March 5, 2020 meeting, and leave the
decision regarding fee ceilings up to the Board.

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

Ensuring the primary goal of the Commission remains the delivery of quality and cost-
effective planning & GIS services to member municipalities

Encouraging member municipalities to invest in their long range planning on a routine,
consistent basis recognizing that well-planned communities contribute to the overall
strength of the region

Equitably distributing the costs of services between member municipalities

Providing a more predictable cost structure for member municipalities and more
predictable funding base to support the operation of the Commission

Flexibility to adjust for future changes in membership and membership needs

STRATEGY

The strategy is based on a full cost recovery model where member municipalities pay
an annual membership fee for basic planning services that are further subsidized by
other revenue streams such as subdivision fees, fee-for-service planning, and various
grants

The Commission continues to operate on a not-for-profit basis with the primary goal of
providing planning and GIS services to member municipalities

Members of the Commission receive the lowest possible cost for the services they
receive with the ability to access additional services as needed

FORMULA

Total Equalized Assessment of Municipality x Split Mill Rate (Urban & Rural)
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BACKGROUND

In 2012, the Oldman River Regional Services Commission instituted a membership fee
floor and ceiling

A floor dissuades understatement of the value of services provided and is required to
realize the expenses accrued in providing member services to our smaller communities
(i.e. planning advice, development advice, phone, travel, overhead, etc.)

a ceiling prevents overstatement of the value of our services and is required to
recognize the large fees that municipalities with high Total Equalized Assessments
would pay as being exorbitant and out of line with the level of service being provided

RATIONALE

The floor equates to 16 hours of planning time/year exclusive of subdivision and fee-
for-service items, but more importantly it provides the municipalities with a ready and
accessible professional planning service to be used when and where each community
requests or requires it

The floor currently applies to 10 villages — $2,119/year

The ceiling equates to 510 hours of planning time/year exclusive of subdivision and fee-
for-service items and acknowledges that beyond a certain price point these
municipalities would lose any financial advantage inherent to belonging in a shared
service

The ceiling currently applies to 3 rurals, 1 city and 1 town — $68,987/year

GIS SERVICES

GIS fees are based on per capita, except for 1 rural (Cardston County) based on parcels
Member per capita ($5.36) — ceiling $41,430/year
Non-member per capita ($5.88) — ceiling $41,430/year
City of Brooks per capita ($5.36) — ceiling $62,135/year

Matthew Foss (Stirling) asked why the ceiling for non-member GIS was not higher than the
member ceiling. Director Lenze Kuiper replied that we will be reviewing the GIS fee structure

this year and the differential between member and non-member fees may need to increase.

Following this review, the matter will be brought back to the Board for a decision.

(b) Change in Membership

. @

The Town of Granum has recently dissolved and is now been absorbed by the M.D. of Willow
Creek. A motion of the Board is needed to proceed with removing the Town from the

Oldman River Regional Services Regulation membership roll.

Moved by: Maryanne Sandherg

THAT the Board of Directors, as per the Lieutenant Governor’s Order in Council (O.C.

017/2020 dated January 28, 2020) dissolving the Town of Granum, request that the Town of
Granum be removed from the Oldman River Regional Services Commission Regulation
303/2003 membership roll. CARRIED
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The Town of Coaldale has given one-year notice to terminate their planning services
agreement effective January 1, 2021 while wishing to maintain GIS services. As we are
awaiting a response to our Executive Committee’s request to meet with their Council on the
issue, no motion to remove them from the ORRSC Regulation is needed at this time.

The County of Newell has given notice of their intention to discontinue membership as of
September 1, 2020. The Executive Committee passed a resolution on February 13, 2020
accepting termination of their planning services agreement as per their request.

Moved by: Elizabeth Christensen

THAT the Board of Directors, as per the instructions of the County of Newell, request that
the Minister of Municipal Affairs and the Lieutenant Governor through an Order in Council
remove the County of Newell from the Oldman River Regional Services Commission
Regulation 303/2003 membership roll, as of September 1, 2020.

Clarence Amulung (County of Newell) expressed disappointment that the decision to accept
the termination request was made without ORRSC meeting with their Council. The Director
explained that he sent a letter to the County requesting a meeting with Council and they
declined, stating their normal procedure with any consultants and service providers is to
work out details of contracted services with staff and administration rather than Council.
Consequently, a motion to accept their termination request was passed by the Executive.

Following discussion, consensus was that the Executive should reach out to County of Newell
Council again in an attempt to understand and resolve the issues before proceeding further.
Elizabeth Christensen withdrew her motion pending further action.

(c) Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Update

The Chinook Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development Appeal Board was established
May 1, 2019 and currently has 42 trained Board members. A total of 12 hearings have been
completed to date. ORRSC held a one-day training session on February 28, 2020 for 11 new
Chinook SDAB members, 3 independent SDAB members and 2 non-members.

(d) Printing & Mailing of Agenda Packages for Board of Directors’ Meetings

Board of Directors’ meeting agendas are currently being printed and mailed to all Board
members in addition to being e-mailed. Members were asked if the printed copies are still
wanted, or whether receiving agendas by e-mail only was sufficient. Various opinions were
expressed and an unofficial vote by raising of hands showed that many (almost half)
preferred to continue receiving printed copies by mail. Therefore, we will continue to send
agendas by both mail and e-mail, until further notice.
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ACCOUNTS

(a) Summary of Balance Sheet and Statement of Income for the 12-month period:
January 1 - December 31, 2019

Moved by: Ed Weistra

THAT the Board of Directors approve the Summary of Balance Sheet and Statement of Income
for the 12-month period: January 1 - December 31, 2019. CARRIED

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by: Gordon Wolstenholme

THAT we adjourn the General Board of Directors’ Meeting of the Oldman River Regional Services
Commission at 8:26 p.m. until Thursday, June 4, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. CARRIED

CHAIR:
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5(a)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REPORT
Meetings of April 9 and June 11, 2020

April 9, 2020:

e KPMG LLP — Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements 2019 — Derek Taylor of KPMG LLP
reviewed the Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements which were prepared in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, including the 4200 series of standards for
government not-for-profit organizations. He reported that the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the ORRSC for the year ending December
31, 2019 and that there were no areas of concern with the audit. Deficiency of revenues over
expenses for the year totalled $42,313.

e Draft ORRSC 2019 Annual Report — The Draft ORRSC 2019 Annual Report was circulated with
the agenda containing the following information for the past year: Message from the Chair and
Director, Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Staff, Municipal Projects and Subdivision
Statistics. The Draft ORRSC 2019 Annual Report will be combined with the Auditors’ Report and
Financial Statements for the year ending December 31, 2019, and referred to the Board of
Directors for ratification at their next meeting.

e Business Continuity — The ORRSC office has remained open during the current COVID-19
pandemic, and our staff continue to provide planning, GIS, subdivision and administrative
services to our member municipalities and the public. To limit exposure to the virus, meetings
are being held remotely, where possible. Several staff are working from home and those in the
office are maintaining social distancing. If this situation is prolonged, we may have to make
some adjustments, such as postpone the Annual General Board of Directors’ meeting scheduled
for June 4.

On March 25, 2020, a Ministerial Order was issued by the Minister of Alberta Municipal Affairs
extending appeal timelines for all subdivisions and developments to October 1, 2020. Because
this change has stalled all development until October, the MD of Willow Creek has requested an
amendment to the Ministerial Order timeline. Approval of some subdivision applications has
been postponed while we wait for an amendment to be announced.

e Night Deposit Motion for ATB Financial — ATB Financial has recently closed some of its
branches and changed procedures for making deposits due to the COVID-19 situation. The Chair
and Director were authorized to sign an ATB form to enable the bookkeeper to make night
deposits, if necessary.

e Subdivision Activity 2020 - 13 subdivision applications were received in February and an
additional 16 in March for a total of 56 applications and revenue of $83,682.50 in the first
quarter of 2020. A new line ‘Subdivision Activity at this time Last Year’ has been added to the
attachment which indicates 53 applications and $93,757.50 in revenue were received during the
same period last year.
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e Fee For Service 2020 — Most of the remaining plans required by the province are nearing
completion and deadlines have been extended on some projects. Staff are working hard to
meet these deadlines while continuing to provide day-to-day planning services to their
municipalities.

e Proposed Meeting with County of Newell Council — Consensus of the Board of Directors at
their March 5, 2020 meeting was that the Executive should reach out to County of Newell
Council again in an attempt to meet together to understand and resolve the issues leading to
terminating the planning services agreement with ORRSC. Don Anderberg offered to contact
Board member Clarence Amulung to determine Council’s willingness to arrange a meeting with
the Executive Committee to discuss the issue.

June 11, 2020:

e Alberta Ombudsman — RARB Complaint & Result — The results of a complaint made to the
Alberta Ombudsman regarding a Regional Assessment Review Board hearing conducted in 2019
in the Village of Glenwood was shared and discussed with the Executive. The Ombudsman has
closed the case and has found no error in conducting the hearing with ORRSC, the Village of
Glenwood and the Assessor in its findings.

o County of Newell Update - A list of items (Minister of Municipal Affairs approval, release of
Power of Attorney with Land Titles, subdivision file, statutory/land use bylaw file transfers)
aiding in the transitioning of membership status of the County of Newell was reviewed.

e Assessment Review Board Update — The upcoming 2020 Assessment Review Board year
including the number of Board Members (11) / Clerks (3) trained and the number of complaints
(3) already received, was presented.

e COVID Update — An update on how ORRSC is handling daily operations and meeting provincial
requirements during COVID was presented.

e GIS Update — ORRSC continues with the roll-out of its new GIS platform. Five municipalities
(Brooks, Coaldale, Olds, Pincher Creek and Taber) have been transitioned onto the new platform
to date, with more expected shortly. The optional addition of Tangible Capital Assets and
Vehicle Tracking modules was presented.

e Subdivision Activity 2020 — Six subdivision applications were received in April bringing the total
number of applications to 75 with revenue of $109,375 so far this year. ‘Subdivision Activity at
this time Last Year’ shows 82 applications with $138,070 in revenue were received during the
same period in 2019.
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Oldman River Regional Services Commission

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR AND DIRECTOR

Price is what you pay; value is what you get! — Warren Buffet

The Oldman River Regional Services Commission helps communities navigate change and prepare for an
uncertain future. It's not a simple task, and it gets even more complex in times of accelerating change, requiring
ever-faster adaption to technological innovation, demographic shifts, political give-and-take, a changing climate
and other drivers.

At ORRSC, we are asking ourselves: How can we help planners and municipalities prepare for an uncertain future
and adapt to this accelerating pace of change? How can we strategically focus on the right things while creating
value for planners and communities both today and into the future?

Planners need to collect, organize and communicate information to ask the right questions and pick the best
techniques and arrive at manageable solutions — and to acquire the patience to deal with processes that are
often iterative and political rather than linear and technical. Our staff place great value on working together to
promote the public good and share a desire to promote the public well-being. Plans are written, programs

established, and land-use regulations adopted to meet the common needs of residents.

With this in mind, the journey continues with the roll-out of numerous new Rural to Rural, Urban to Rural
Intermunicipal Development Plans that comply with recent changes to the Municipal Government Act, with the
addition of advanced technology in the form of a comprehensive overhaul of our Geographical Information
System (GIS) platform, and with the formation of a Regional Subdivision and Development Appeal Board to go
hand-in-hand with our Regional Assessment Review Board service.

Adding value to our core professional services and transferring that value to our member municipalities and, in
turn, to your residents remains our focus.

Over the past year we've met with many board members, municipal councils, administrators and citizens and
these interactions make it clear that ORRSC is widely viewed as a having a strong regional presence with
excellent opportunities for delivering value and expertise. Our strategy is clear and well-understood. Qur
municipalities appreciate the knowledge, expertise and commitment of our professional staff and there is great
pride in being one of Alberta’s strongest land use planning and geographic Information system providers.

These services come with a price and in challenging economic times they must also come with value!

At the Executive level, we would like to thank Jim Bester (Cardston County), Don Anderberg (Town of Pincher
Creek), Doug Macpherson (Town of Claresholm), lan Sundquist (M.D. of Willow Creek), Jennifer Crowson (M.D.
of Taber) and Margret Plumtree (Town of Vauxhall) for their continued support and leadership.

In closing, we would like to thank all of our municipalities including our GIS partners to the north, our board, our
executive, and our staff — it is truly a privilege to serve with all of you. Together, we can ensure our future
remains bright.

&0/ \’A 71 ///%j//’dﬂg ; ; \

Gordon Wolstenholme, Chair Lenze Kuﬁef—birector \






BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Membership as at December 31, 2019 consisted of the following 42 municipalities. Four Board of Directors’
meetings were held between January 1 and December 31, 2019. Municipal representatives are listed below:

FORMER MEMBER
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Oldman River Regional Services Commission

MUNICIPALITY

CURRENT MEMBER

(part of 2019)

Arrowwood (Village)
Barnwell (Village)
Barons (Village)
Bassano (Town)
Brooks (City)
Cardston (County)
Cardston (Town)
Carmangay (Village)
Champion (Village)
Claresholm (Town)
Coaldale (Town)
Coalhurst (Town)
Coutts (Village)
Cowley (Village)

Crowsnest Pass (Municipality)

Duchess (Village)

Fort Macleod (Town)
Glenwood (Village)
Granum (Town)

Hill Spring (Village)
Lethbridge (County)
Lomond (Village)
Magrath (Town)

Milk River (Town)

Milo (Village)

Nanton (Town)

Newell (County)
Nobleford (Town)
Picture Butte (Town)
Pincher Creek (M.D. No. 9)
Pincher Creek (Town)
Ranchland (M.D. No. 66)
Raymond (Town)

" Stavely (Town)

Stirling (Village)

Taber (M.D.)

Vauxhall (Town)

Vulcan (County)

Vulcan (Town)

Warner (County No. 5)
Warner (Village)

Willow Creek (M.D. No. 26)

Kevyn Stevenson
Delbert Bodnarek
Ed Weistra

Tom Rose

Norman Gerestein
Jim Bester

Richard Bengry
Peggy Hovde

Jamie Smith

Doug MacPherson
Butch (Henry) Pauls
Elizabeth Christensen
Tanya Smith
Warren Mickels
Dave Fillipuzzi & Dean Ward
Kole Steinley
Gordon Wolstenholme
Gerry Carter
Suzanne French
Morris Zeinstra
Brad Koch

Richard Van Ee
Peggy Losey
Sheldon Walker
Beryl West
Clarence Amulung
Marinus de Leeuw
Henry de Kok

Bev Everts

Don Anderberg
Ronald Davis
Stewart Foss

Don Norby
Matthew Foss
Jennifer Crowson

- Margaret Plumtree

Jason Schneider
Lyle Magnuson
David Cody
Marty Kirby

lan Sundquist

Duncan McLean

Dan MclLelland

Eric Burns
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Oldman River Regional Services Commission

CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR |

The Chair and Vice-Chair from January 1 to December 5, 2019 were:

Chair — Gordon Wolstenholme (Town of Fort Macleod)

Vice-Chair — Jim Bester (Cardston County)

At the December 5, 2019 Annual Organizational Board of Directors’ meeting, both the Chair and Vice-Chair were
re-elected to their positions for the period December 5, 2019 to December 3, 2020.

The Executive Committee is responsible for financial and administrative concerns including budget preparation,
approval of accounts, procedures and policies for hiring and dismissal of staff, and specific issues affecting
administration or policy. Eight meetings were held between January 1 and December 31, 2019.

The following served on the Executive Committee from January 1 to December 5, 2019:

Gordon Wolstenholme Town of Fort Macleod (Chair)

Jim Bester —  Cardston County (Vice-Chair)
Don Anderberg - Town of Pincher Creek

Doug MacPherson — Town of Claresholm

lan Sundquist - M.D. of Willow Creek No. 26
Jennifer Crowson —  M.D. of Taber

Town of Vauxhall

Margaret Plumtree

At the December 5, 2019 Annual Organizational Board of Directors’ meeting, all of the above were re-elected to
serve on the Executive Committee from December 5, 2019 to December 3, 2020.
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Oldman River Regional Services Commission

STAFF Employed During 2019

DIRECTOR

SENIOR PLANNER
SENIOR PLANNER
SENIOR PLANNER
SENIOR PLANNER
SENIOR PLANNER
PLANNER

PLANNER

PLANNER
ASSISTANT PLANNER
ASSISTANT PLANNER

ASSISTANT PLANNER

CAD/GIS TECHNOLOGIST
CAD/GIS TECHNOLOGIST
CAD/GIS TECHNOLOGIST
GIS ANALYST
GIS ANALYST

GIS TECHNICIAN

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY
BOOKKEEPER

SUBDIVISION TECHNICIAN

MUNICIPAL PLANNING CLERK

Lenze Kuiper

Bonnie Brunner

Mike Burla

Steve Harty

Diane Horvath

Gavin Scott

Madeleine Baldwin — started December 2/19
Ryan Dyck (90% part-time)

lan MacDougall — January 1 - March 8/19
Erin Graham

Max Kelly — started May 13/19

Hailey Winder

Mladen Kristic

Yueu Majok

Kaylee Sailer (maternity leave starting September 1/19)
Jaime Thomas

Jordan Thomas

Carlin Groves (contract starting July 1/19)

Barb Johnson (80% part-time)
Sherry Johnson (80% part-time)
Jennifer Maxwell

Bonnie Andres — started January 2/19
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Oldman River Regional Services Commission

MUNICIPAL PROJECTS

Arrowwood (Village) — Municipal Development Plan (completed); Land Use Updates (completed);
Intermunicipal Development Plan with Vulcan County (ongoing)

Barnwell (Village) — Land Use Bylaw Rewrite (completed)

Barons (Village) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Lethbridge County (commenced)
Bassano (Town) — Municipal Development Plan (commenced)

Brooks (City) — Land Use Bylaw Rewrite (commenced)

Cardston (County) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D. of Pincher Creek (completed); Intermunicipal
Development Plan with Town of Cardston (ongoing); Intermunicipal Development Plan with Town of Magrath
Update (ongoing); Land Use Bylaw (commenced)

Cardston (Town) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Cardston County (ongoing)

Carmangay (Village) — Municipal Development Plan (completed); Land Use Bylaw Updates (ongoing);
Intermunicipal Development Plan with Vulcan County (commenced)

Champion (Village) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Vulcan County (draft completed), Land Use Bylaw
Updates (ongoing)

Claresholm (Town) — Annexation (completed); Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D. of Willow Creek
(commenced)

Coaldale (Town) — East Coaldale Area Structure Plan (ongoing); Municipal Development Plan (ongoing)

Coalhurst (Town) — Lethbridge County and Town of Coalhurst Joint Industrial Area Structure Plan (completed);
Land Use Bylaw (ongoing)

Coutts (Village) — SSRP Compliance Review; Land Use Bylaw Updates - Administrative (completed); Municipal
Development Plan (commenced); Intermunicipal Development Plan with County of Warner (commenced);
Intermunicipal Collaborative Framework with County of Warner (commenced)

Cowley (Village) — Municipal Development Plan (ongoing)

Crowsnest Pass (Municipality) = Municipal Development Plan Background Report (ongoing); Intermunicipal
Development Plan with M.D. of Ranchland No. 66 (ongoing); Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D. of
Pincher Creek (completed)

Duchess (Village) — Land Use Bylaw (commenced)

Fort Macleod (Town) — Macleod Meadows Concept Plan (ongoing); Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D.
of Willow Creek (commenced)

Glenwood (Village) — Municipal Development Plan (ongoing)
Granum (Town) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D. of Willow Creek (terminated)

Hill Spring (Village) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Cardston County (commenced)
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Oldman River Regional Services Commission

Lethbridge (County) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Town of Nobleford Update (adopted); Joint
Industrial Area Structure Plan with Town of Coalhurst (completed); Hamlet of Turin Growth Study (completed);
Hamlet of Iron Springs Growth Study (completed); Intermunicipal Development Plan with Village of Barons
(commenced); Hamlet of Shaughnessy Growth Study {(commenced); Hamlet of Diamond City Growth Study
(commenced); Hamlets of Chin/Kipp Growth Study (commenced)

Lomond (Village)} — Municipal Development Plan (ongoing); Intermunicipal Development Plan with Vulcan
County (ongoing)

Magrath (Town) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Cardston County Update {(ongoing)

Milk River {Town) — SSRP Compliance Review; Land Use Bylaw Updates - Administrative (completed);
Intermunicipal Development Plan with County of Warner (commenced); Intermunicipal Collaborative Framework
with County of Warner (commenced)

Milo (Village) — Municipal Development Plan (ongoing); Intermunicipal Development Plan with Vulcan County
(ongoing)

Nanton (Town) — Westview Concept Plan (commenced)

Newell (County) — North Headgates Area Redevelopment Plan (completed)

Nobleford {Town) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Lethbridge County Update (completed)
Picture Butte (Town) — Industrial-Commercial Growth Study (completed); Annexation Report (completed)

Pincher Creek (M.D. No. 9) — Castle Mountain Area Structure Plan (completed); Wind Energy Conversion
Systems Review (completed); Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D. of Ranchland (completed);
Intermunicipal Development Plans with Cardston County, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass, M.D. of Ranchland,
and M.D. of Willow Creek (completed); Municipal Development Plan (commenced)

Pincher Creek (Town) — Land Use Bylaw (ongoing)

Ranchland (M.D. No. 66) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D. of Pincher Creek (completed);
Intermunicipal Development Plan with Municipality of Crowsnest Pass (ongoing)

Raymond (Town) — SSRP Compliance Review; Land Use Bylaw Updates - Administrative (completed);
Intermunicipal Development Plan Amendments with County of Warner (commenced)

Stavely (Town) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D. of Willow Creek (commenced)

Stirling (Village) — SSRP Compliance Review; Intermunicipal Development Plan with County of Warner
(commenced)

Taber (M.D.) — SSRP Compliance Review; Land Use Bylaw Updates - Administrative (completed); Intermunicipal
Development Plan with Town of Taber (commenced) '

Vauxhall (Town) — SSRP Compliance Review

Vulcan (County) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Town of Vulcan (completed); Intermunicipal
Development Plan with Village of Arrowwood (ongoing); Intermunicipal Development Plan with Village of
Champion (ongoing); Intermunicipal Development Plan with Village of Milo (ongoing); Land Use Bylaw (ongoing)

Vulcan (Town) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with Vulcan County (completed)
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Oldman River Regional Services Commission

SUBDIVISION

Warner (County No. 5) — Land Use Bylaw Updates (completed); Intermunicipal Development Plans with Town
of Milk River and Villages of Coutts, Stirling and Warner (commenced); Intermunicipal Development Plan with
Town of Raymond Update (commenced); Intermunicipal Collaborative Frameworks with Towns of Milk River and
Raymond and Villages of Coutts, Stirling and Warner (commenced)

Warner (Village) — SSRP Compliance Review; Land Use Bylaw Updates - Administrative (completed); Municipal
Development Plan (ongoing); Intermunicipal Development Plan with County of Warner (commenced);
Intermunicipal Collaborative Framework with County of Warner (commenced)

Willow Creek (M.D. No. 26) — Intermunicipal Development Plan with M.D. of Ranchland (completed); Land Use
Bylaw (adopted); Intermunicipal Development Plan with Town of Claresholm (commenced); Intermunicipal
Development Plan with Town of Fort Macleod (commenced); Intermunicipal Development Plan with Town of
Stavely (commenced)

GIS Project:
¢ Installed new GIS software
¢ Started site conversion to new GIS software
s Attended five ESRI software education courses
s Installation of new server infrastructure at Whipcord

Applied for IC grant from Municipal Affairs

Other Projects and Services:
« Secretarial service for 16 Subdivision and Development Appeal Board hearings
¢ Clerk service for 14 Regional Assessment Review Board hearings
¢ Hosted Assessment Review Board Training - April 2019
« Board Bus Tour to visit Raymond Alternative Energy Project — September 2019

SUMMARY OF APPLICATIONS PROCESSED

A total of 177 subdivision applications were processed during the 2019 calendar year. The status of these
applications as at December 31, 2019 are shown below:

158 — Approved or Approved on Condition

1 - Refused
1 - Withdrawn or Expired
17 - Pending

No subdivision applications were appealed in 2019.

The following table shows a detailed breakdown of the subdivision applications for 2019.
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Financial Statements of

OLDMAN RIVER
REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

And Independent Auditors' Report thereon
Year ended December 31, 2019





KPMG LLP

#500, 400 - 4th Avenue South
Lethbridge AB T1J 4E1
Canada

Tel 403-380-5700

Fax 403-380-5760

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Oldman River Regional Services Commission
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Oldman River Regional Services
Commission (the Commission), which comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019

e the statement of operations for the year then ended

e the statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then ended
o the statement of cash flows for the year then ended

e and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies
(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Commission as at December 31, 2019, and its
results of operations, changes in net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, including
the 4200 series of standards for government not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of
our auditors’ report.

We are independent of the Commission in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”),a Swiss entity.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP





Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, including
the 4200 series of standards for government not-for-profit organizations, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Commission'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Commission or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Commission’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.





e Obtain an understanding of internal confrol relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission's internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Commission's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Commission to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represents the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

L& V724
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Chartered Professional Accountants

Lethbridge, Canada

April 9, 2020





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES

COMMISSION

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

2019 2018
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and short-term deposits $ 199,447 389,683
Accounts receivable (note 4) 61,266 31,503
Prepaid expenses and deposits 10,574 10,527
271,287 431,713
Cash not available for current operations 336,762 199,905
Capital assets (note 5) 620,754 619,638
$ 1,228,803 1,251,256
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3 228,929 209,069
Net assets:
Unrestricted 42 358 222,644
Invested in capital assets 620,754 619,638
Internally restricted 336,762 109,905
999,874 1,042,187
Commitments (note 7)
$ 1,228,803 1,251,256

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:






OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES

COMMISSION

Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

2019 2019 2018
Budget Actual Actual
Revenue:
Municipal contributions $ 953,084 $ 953,084 $ 938,079
GIS member fees 590,000 594 386 593,314
Subdivision fees 315,000 276,180 352,688
Service fees 425,000 329,623 445603
Alberta Community Partnership Grant revenue
recognized - - 43,200
Other revenue 26,850 63,373 13,828
Interest income 5,000 15,711 11,659
2,314,934 2,232,357 2,398,371
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 2,012,000 1,963,921 1,881,894
Equipment 78,000 63,635 32,981
Occupancy costs 43,000 34,382 43,351
Repairs and maintenance 24,000 26,993 22,547
Staff travel 20,000 21,144 22,040
Telephone 17,000 20,602 20,594
Professional fees 12,500 9,880 14,789
Staff training and conferences 9,000 2,274 1,596
Printing and duplicating 8,500 6,479 9,195
Members' travel 8,000 8,103 7,230
Postage 7,000 6,500 3,816
Janitorial 6,000 6,533 6,002
Office and general 5,500 8,282 9,719
Members' fees 5,000 6,360 5514
Advertising 5,000 5,009 4 531
Consulting 5,000 4,600 41,606
Land titles office 5,000 3,149 3,394
Public relations 4,000 8,882 6,547
Miscellaneous 2,000 12,187 2,023
Interest and bank charges - 581 355
Alberta Community Partnership project
expenses - - 25,850
Amortization ' - 63,641 51,981
2,276,500 2,283,137 2,217,555
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses
before the undernoted item 38,434 (50,780) 180,816
Other income:
Gain on sale of capital assets - 8,467 4,216
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses  $ 38,434 3 (42,313) § 185,032

See accompanying notes to financial statements.





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES

COMMISSION

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

Internally Invested in Total Total
Unrestricted restricted capital assets 2019 2018
Balance, beginning
of year $ 222644 $ 199,905 $ 619638 $ 1,042,187 §$ 857,155
Excess (deficiency)
of revenue over
expenses (42,313) - - (42,313) 185,032
Amortization of
internally funded
capital assets 63,641 - (63,641) - -
Purchase of capital
assets (69,290) - 69,290 - -
Net book value of
disposed capital
assets 4,533 - (4,533) - -
Transfers to _
reserve (note 10) (136,857) 136,857 - - -
Balance, end of
year $ 42,358 $ 336,762 $§ 620,754 $ 999874 $ 1,042,187

See accompanying notes to financial statements.





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES

COMMISSION

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

2019 2018
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (42,313) 185,032
ltems not involving cash:
Amortization 63,641 51,981
Gain on sale of capital assets (8,467) (4,216)
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Accounts receivable (29,763) 45237
Prepaid expenses and deposits (47) 3,196
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 19,860 12,861
Deferred revenue - (43,200)
2,911 250,891
Capital activities:
Purchase of capital assets (69,290) (45,144)
Proceeds on sale of capital assets 13,000 7,500
(56,290) (37,644)
Increase (decrease) in cash and short-term deposits (53,379) 213,247
Cash and short-term deposits, beginning of year 589,588 376,339
Cash, end of year 536,209 589,586
Cash is represented by:
Cash and short-term deposits 199,447 389,683
Cash not available for current operations 336,762 199,905
536,209 589,588

See accompanying notes to financial statements.





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of operations:

Oldman River Regional Services Commission (the "Commission") is a regional planning commission
created by an order in Council of the province of Alberta on October 21, 2003. It was created
pursuant to the Municipal Government Act of Alberta. Members of the Commission are restricted to
municipal authorities. The Commission is exempt from income tax under Section 149 of the
Canadian Income Tax Act.

1. Significant accounting policies:

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards including the 4200 standards for government not-for-profit organizations. The
Commission’s significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue recognition:

The Commission follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Externally
restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when
received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and
collection is reasonably assured.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when
earned.

Approval fees, sales of maps revenue and fee for service revenue are recognized as
revenue in the period in which the service is delivered or in which the transaction or events
that gave rise to the revenue occurred.





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2019

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(b) Capital assets:

Capital assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided
using the following methods and annual rates:

Asset Basis Rate
Building Declining balance 4%
Vehicles Declining balance 30%
Computer Straight-line 4 years
General contents Straight-line 5 years

Capital assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset no longer has any long-term service potential to the Commission.
Any such impairment is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to
estimated residual value.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and short-term deposits, which are
highly liquid with original maturities of less than three months from the date of acquisition.
These financial assets are convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes'in value.





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2019

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(d)

(e)

Financial instruments:

A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and
obligations to receive or deliver economic benefits. The financial assets and financial
liabilities portray these rights and obligations in the financial statements. The Commission
recognizes a financial instrument when it becomes a party to a financial instrument
contract.

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, portfolio
investments, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, debt and other
liabilities. Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Commission is not
exposed to significant credit and liquidity risks, or market risk, which includes currency,
interest rate and other price risks.

Portfolio investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market and derivatives are
recorded at fair value. All other financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or
amortized cost and the associated transaction costs are added to the carrying value of
items in the cost or amortized cost upon initial recognition. The gain or loss arising from
de-recognition of a financial ‘instrument is recognized in the Statement of Operations.
Impairment losses such as write-downs or write-offs are reported in the Statement of
Operations.

There are no remeasurement gains or losses and as such, a statement of remeasurement
gains and losses has not been prepared.

Employee future benefits:

The Commission participates in a multi-employer defined pension plan call the Local
Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP). This pension plan is a multi-employer defined benefit
pension plan that provides pension benefits for the Commission's participating employees,
based on years of service and earnings. f

The plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan whereby contributions are
expensed as incurred.





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2019

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(f)

(9)

Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates and
assumptions include the carrying amounts of capital assets. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Contaminated sites liability:

The Commission uses Public Sector Accounting Standards section 3260 - liability for
contaminated sites. Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into
air, soil, water or sediment of a chemical, organic or retroactive or live organism that
exceeds an environmental standard. The liability is recorded net of any expected
recoveries. A liability for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized when a site is
not in productive use and is management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation
including operation, maintenance and monitoring. At December 31, 2019 the Commission
did not have any liabilities associated with contaminated sites.

Future accounting pronouncements:

The following summarizes the upcoming changes to the Public Sector Accounting Standards by
the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSAB). In 2020, the Commission will continue
to assess the impact and prepare for the adoption of these standards. While the timing of
standard adoption can vary, certain standards must be adopted concurrently. '

(i)

(ii)

PS 3280 - Asset retirement obligations:

This section provides guidance on.how to account for and report a liability for retirement of
a tangible capital asset. This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April
1, 2021.

PS 3400 - Revenue:

This section provides guidance on how to account for and report on revenue, specifically
addressing revenue arising from exchange transactions and unilateral transactions. This
section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022.





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES

COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2019

3. Accounts receivable:

2019 2018

Trade receivables $ 56,197 $ 26,235
Goods and services tax 5,069 5,268
$ 61,266 $ 31,503

4. Capital assets:

2019

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

Land 80,000 $ - 5 80,000
Building 773,397 342,392 431,005
General contents 281,195 260,665 20,530
Other equipment 13,678 13,097 581
Vehicles 78,942 41,000 37,942
Computer 146,377 95,681 50,696
1,373,589 §$ 752,835 $ 620,754

2018
Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

Land 80,000 $ - % 80,000
Building 773,397 324,433 448,964
General contents 276,830 256,597 20,233
Other equipment 13,678 13,097 581
Vehicles 75,449 42 496 32,953
Computer 120,241 83,334 36,907
1,339,595 $ 719,957 $ 619,638






OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2019

5.

Financial risks and concentration of risk:

(@)

(c)

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Commission will be unable to fulfil its obligations on a
timely basis or at a reasonable cost. The Commission manages its liquidity risk by
monitoring its operating requirements. There has been no change to the risk exposures
from 2018.

Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that changes in market price such as interest rates will affect the

Commission's income or value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

Interest rate risk:

The Commission is exposed to interest rate risk on its fixed interest rate financial
instruments and floating rate operating line of credit loan.

Credit risk:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss. The Commission is exposed to credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable and has processes in place to monitor accounts receivable balances.
The Commission believes that it is not exposed to significant credit risk arising from its
financial instruments.

10





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2019

6. Commitments:

(a) The Commission leased equipment under agreements expiring on dates ranging from
April, 2019 to January, 2021. The base rent obligation under the leases for the next year is
approximately $4,324.

(b) The Commission has signed contracts for electricity and natural gas for its facilities, which
expired on December 31, 2018, however is to continue on a year to year basis until written
notice of termination on December 31, 2023.

7. Economic dependence:

The Commission receives a significant portion of its revenue directly and indirectly from its
members, such the Commission is economically dependent on its members.

8. Debt limits:

Section 276(2) of the Municipal Government Act requires that debt and debt limits as defined by
Alberta Regulation 76/2000 for the Commission be disclosed as follows:

2019 2018
Total debt limit $ 1,116,178 $ 1,171,760
Total debt = &
Debt servicing limit $ 223,236 234,352
Debt servicing = s
Amount of debt servicing limit unused $ 223,236 $ 234,352

The ‘debt limit is calculated at 0.5 times revenue of the Commission (as defined in Alberta
Regulation 76/2000) and the debt service limit is calculated at 0.1 times such revenue. Incurring
debt beyond these limitations requires approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs. These
thresholds are guidelines used by Alberta Municipal Affairs to identify municipalities which could
be at financial risk if further debt is acquired. The calculation taken alone does not represent the
financial stability of the Commission. Rather, the financial statements must be interpreted as a
whole.

11





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2019

9.

10.

Internally restricted net assets:

Internally restricted net assets is comprised of the following:

2019 2018

Operating reserve fund 168,381 99,952
Capital reserve fund 168,381 99,953
336,762 199,905

Local Authorities Pension Plan:

Employees of Oldman River Regional Services Commission participate in the Local Authorities
Pension Plan, which is one of the plans covered by the Public Sector Pension Plans Act. The
plan covers approximately 265,813 employees of approximately 421 non-government employer
organizations such as municipalities, hospitals, and schools (non-teachers).

Oldman River Regional Services Commission is required to make current service conftributions
to the Plan of 9.39% of pensionable payroll up to the year's maximum pensionable earnings
under the Canada Pension Plan, and 13.84% on pensionable earnings above this amount.

Employees of Oldman River Regional Services Commission are required to make current
service contributions of 8.39% of pensionable salary up to the year's maximum pensionable
earnings under the Canada Pension Plan, and 12.84% on pensionable salary above this
amount.

Total current and past service contributions by Oldman River Regional Services Commission to
the Local Authorities Pension Plan in 2019 were $137,062 (2018 - $143,590). Total current and
past service contributions by the employees of Oldman River Regicnal Services Commission to
the Local Authorities Pension Plan in 2019 were $124,278 (2018 - $131,325).

At December 31, 2018 the Plan disclosed an actuarial surplus of $3.5 billion.

12





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES
COMMISSION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2019

1.

12.

13.

Contractual rights:

Contractual rights are rights of the Commission to economic resources arising from contracts or
agreements that will result in both assets and revenues in the future when the terms of those
contracts or agreements are met.

The Commission has entered into agreements to provide services to municipal members. The
timing and extent of the fees collected in the future depend upon the timing and extent of
services provided and as such will vary in the future.

The Commission collects municipal contributions from its members, the amounts collected
depend upon participation and population of member communities and as such will vary in the
future.

Budget information:

The budget information was approved by the Board on December 6, 2018.

Subsequent event:

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the
World Health Organization and has had a significant financial, market and social dislocating
impact.

At the time of the approval of these financial statements, the Commission has experienced
financial and operational impacts and has undertaken certain activates in relation to the COVID-
19 pandemic.

At this time, uncertainty exists over future cash flows which may cause significant changes to

the assets and liabilities and may have a significant impact on future operations. An estimate of
the financial effect is not practicable at this time.

13
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6(b)

Regional Services Commissions

w el §

Amendments to Part 15.1 of the Municipal Government Act (MGA) related to
regional services commissions (RSCs) will come into force on

September 1, 2020.

Why are changes being

I 1 DCOMNAND
made to RSCs%

As part of the government's efforts to reduce red
tape, the changes will reduce the required amount of
provincial approvals for RSCs. The changes will
ensure RSCs are accountable to their member
municipal authorities and will operate in a more
streamlined manner.

The operations of Alberta’s existing 75 RSCs will
continue with minimal impact and, going forward, will
govern the services they provide without the need
for additional provincial approvals.

What are the kev changes?

Provincial approval will no longer be required for:
o changes to RSC services;
" . e changes to board of director

\ - ) bylaws;

RS |« addition and removal of members
or non-member municipal authority
customers;

» disposal of assets; and
o RSC disestablishment.

For the establishment of a new RSC, Provincial
Cabinet approval, through an Order in Council, is
also no longer required. However, the Minister must
be notified within 60 days of municipal authorities
passing resolutions to establish an RSC. The RSC is
established once a Ministerial Order is issued listing
the Commission.

To supplement the governance of RSCs, the MGA

will provide a list of required bylaws RSCs must
have.

©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: June 2020

What is the legislative impact?

The changes will result in amendments to Part 15.1
of the MGA; however, much will remain the same in
substance.

Eighty individual regulations, including the 75
existing establishing regulations, will be repealed as
of September 1, 2020.

All existing RSCs will continue as though they were
established under the new framework. This will be
accomplished through a ministerial order that will be
maintained by Municipal Affairs.

How will the powers and duties
of RSCs be affected?
The powers and duties of RSCs will not significantly
change.
o RSCs will continue to have the legal status
of a corporation.
¢ RSCs will continue to have natural person
powers, except as limited by the MGA or an
RSC’s bylaws.
¢ RSCs will continue to be eligible for capital
barrowing through the Alberta Capital
Finance Authority.
¢ RSCs will continue to have the ability to
acquire or expropriate land.
s Changes will have no resulting impact to
existing RSC service areas, membership, or
non-member customers.,
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The members, board of directors, and chair of all
existing commissions will continue according to the
RSC's bylaws (or ministerial order in the cases of
recently established regional services commissions
still in transition).

RSCs will be subject to Sections 197 and 199 of the
MGA, which govern meetings held by
(0] 00 . municipal councils (including
: | electronic meetings). This change will
provide greater clarity and
consistency for meeting standards.

Existing RSC bylaws and resolutions will continue
unless repealed, amended, or replaced by the board
of directors. RSCs must ensure adopted bylaws
address:

¢ the services provided;

» administration;

s the process for changing directors of the
board and the chair, as well as determining
the terms of office;

e the process for adding and removing
members;

e the fees to be charged for services provided
to its customers or to any class of its
customers;

e the disposal of assets; and

e the terms for disestablishment, including the
treatment of assets and liabilities.

RSCs should also ensure they obtain a copy of their
establishing regulation (or other legislative
documents of importance) prior to their repeal on
September 1, 2020, to consider transferring
important elements to their bylaws. All existing
regulations can be found on the Alberta Queen's
Printer website by browsing the catalogue through
alphabetical search.

irmmnlicarinn
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There are minimal changes to the financial
requirements of RSCs; those made intend to align
the financial management of RSCs more closely with
municipal financial processes.

©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: June 2020

Areas of alignment include:
e addressing financial shortfalls;
s requirements for capital budgets; and
« use of borrowed money.

Otherwise, financial provisions will remain generally
the same, including, but not limited to, debt limit
regulations, audited financial statements, and
financial information returns.

RSCs will continue to be expected to operate on a
non-profit, full cost-recovery basis. This means
RSCs will continue to be prohibited from operating
with the intention of making a profit or be able to
distribute surplus funds to its members. If such
factors exist within a regional service delivery model,
other corporate structures, such as municipally
controlled corporations, may be more appropriate.

A llsa® il B O e wraasl diwe ol s
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RSCs should review and update their bylaws to
comply with the requirements within one year of the
amendments coming into effect. It is the
responsibility of RSCs to ensure compliance with
new legislation. The required compliance date is
September 1, 2021,

RSCs and municipal authorities

are encouraged contact

Municipal Affairs for advice and

support. Training opportunities

will be available beginning in fall 2020 (details to be
announced).

Additional Information

FOf guestions about regional sei

¢t | i1

please c

PDagsion = malgsmail@agov.ab.ca o

80-427-2225 or toll-free by firs aaling
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ALBERTA
MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS
Office of the Minister

MLA, Edmonton - South West

AR101183

Mr. Gord Wolstenholme, Chairperson
Oldman River Regional Services Commission
3105 - 16 Avenue North

Lethbridge, AB T1H 5E8

Dear Chairperson Wolstenholme and Board of Directors,

Regional service commissions (RSCs) have been a highly effective tool that have
strengthened municipal collaboration and regional service delivery across the province
for over 30 years. Alberta’s 75 RSCs provide vitally important services to their member
municipal authorities and many non-member municipal customers.

As part of our government's efforts to reduce red tape, | am pleased to inform you of
recent amendments to the Municipal Government Act that will streamline the legislative
framework for RSCs. The amendments are intended to reduce many administrative
burdens while maintaining most of the substance of the legislation that has enabled
RSCs to be so successful.

The changes will also ensure greater accountability to the member municipalities by
reducing the role of the province in approving many business decisions. The legislative
and regulatory changes will take effect September 1, 2020, and will include the repeal of
80 regulations, including the establishing regulations for each of the 75 RSCs. Instead,
RSCs will be approved by way of a single ministerial order listing all approved RSCs.

The amendments have been drafted to ensure a smooth transition for all RSCs. For
instance, RSCs will continue to be incorporated entities, maintain all of the powers and
duties they currently have, and existing boards of directors will continue.

Changes have been made to the list of required bylaws to address matters previously
established in the regulations. RSCs will have one year from the effective date to
ensure their bylaws address the requirements; my ministry remains available to provide
advice through the transition.

Recently, all municipal chief administrative officers and RSC managers received a fact
sheet from my ministry outlining the changes when they were proposed. | encourage
you to review this information with your managers.

il

132 Legislature Building, 10800 - 97 Avenue, Edmonton, Alberra TSK 2B6 Canada  Telephone 780-427-3744 Fax 780-422-9550
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.
Should you have any questions regarding the RSC legislative framework, you can
speak with a Municipal Affairs advisor toll-free at 310-0000, then 780-427-2225.

I trust this enabling legislation will be a positive change for RSCs and support their
continued success.

Thank you for your leadership. | wish you much success in your future endeavours.

Yours very truly,

Kaycee Madu, QC
Minister
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Subdivision Activity - 2020

Ext &
Additional
Month # App # Lots | Application Fees | Finalization Fees Fees TOTAL
January 27 47 $33,197.50 $3,987.50 $655.00f $37,840.00
February 13 21 $16,115.00 $3,987.50 $860.00] $20,962.50
March 16 14 $19,145.00 $4,095.00] $1,640.00f $24,880.00
April 13 9 $12,165.00 $2,460.00] $1,320.00f $15,945.00
May 6 9 $7,750.00 $1,537.50 $460.00 $9,747.50
June 12 17 $12,965.00 $3,485.00 $760.00] $17,210.00
July 12 11 $12,300.00 $2,767.50 $675.00] $15,742.50
August
September
October
November
December
99 128 $113,637.50 $22,320.00 $6,370.00| $142,327.50
Subdivision Activity at this time Last Year
2019 109 | 141 $124,612.50] $42,400.00] $5,495.00] $172,507.50
Past Years - Year End
2019 177 250 $206,400.00 $60,475.00]  $9,305.00| $276,180.00
2018 196 394 $258,837.50 $79,625.00] $14,225.00| $352,687.50
2017 199 439 $259,587.50 $65,500.00 $13,530.00| $338,617.50
2016 185 410 $232,587.50 $70,827.50 $9,253.00f $312,668.00
2015 207 407 $236,150.00 $54,775.00 $7,806.25| $298,731.25
2014 189 453 $256,800.00 $60,475.00] $10,325.00| $327,600.00
2013 183 597 $279,101.00 $63,509.00| $11,020.00| $353,630.00
2012 228 502 $248,550.00 $44,300.00| $10,825.00] $303,675.00
2011 204 554 $254,630.11 $73,570.00| $10,980.00| $339,180.11
2010 300 598 $264,450.00 $98,820.00| $13,260.00] $376,530.00
2009 257 877 $326,180.00 $97,900.00 $2,170.00] $426,250.00
2008 . 354 1150 $423,450.00 $180,275.00 $2,550.00| $606,275.00
2007 506 2244 $757,100.00 $251,775.00 $0.00| $1,008,875.00











[OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION S . .
Balance Sheet (7 months) Unaudited B . P N
as of July 31, 2020 . - - L
Assets - SR R A
ol e s ewwwl
Total Capital Fund $ 620,752.00 |
Total Assets B s es 00| -
Liabilities & Equity } i - | R
Total Operating Fund o . ) $ 2739,762.0_6_’- B _____ - ___
Total Capital Fund B § ~750,955.00 N
Excess Rev/Exp b 628,074.00
Total Liabilities & Equity i ’ B $ 1,618,791.00 | i
OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION | — -
Income Statement (7 months) Unaudited ) e ) b I
as of July 31,2020 o N - N ‘ - o
ACTUAL | BUDGET Variance
TOTAL REVENUE - s 1,743,010.00 [$ 241477900 | $  27.82
E.ﬁxﬂpenditures‘ - o _7 I - B B . - N
s | |5 wmwo|s imasia
Total Staff Benefits 7 $ _209,187.00 E 347,23'4‘00 39.76%}_
Total Staff Travel & Mitgs i . 5 9,561.00 | $ 28,000.00 65.85%|
Total Members Travel & Mtgs ) 3 480600 %  13,000.00 - 63.03%
Total Office & Renovations $ 14,601.00 | $ ~36,000.00 | ) 7_5_?.44%
Total Telephone & Supplies $ 13,449.00 | § 128,000.00 ~ 51.97%
Total Printing & Duplication - - % 1,901.00 | $ B 7,500.00  T4.65%)
| Total Other Operating Exps B N |3 95,008.00 | § 128,500.00 ~ 26.06%
Total Fixed Assets $ 20,280.00 | $§ 62,000.00 67.29%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,363,850.00 | $ 237453100 |  42.56%
TOTAL BUDGET EXCESS REV/EXP $ 379,160.00 'S 40,248.00
| | |












OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION

MINUTES - 1 (2020)

GENERAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Thursday, March 5, 2020 - 7:00 p.m.
ORRSC Conference Room (3105 - 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Kevyn Stevenson ...........ccee..e. Village of Arrowwood Brad Koch (absent) ........cccuveeruneennn. Village of Lomond
Delbert Bodnarek (absent) ............ Village of Barnwell Richard Van Ee ......cccocevvecuveveviienne Town of Magrath
Ed Weistra ...ccocoeeevceee e Village of Barons Peggy LOSEY....cccueeeeeiieeeiree e, Town of Milk River
TOM ROSE..uvvveeeeeeiirieeeee e Town of Bassano Sheldon Walker (absent) .......cccccceeennnee Village of Milo
Norman Gerestein........cccceeeeceveeerveennn. City of Brooks Beryl West (absent) .......cccceeevvveeennns Town of Nanton
Jim Bester...oouviiecee e, Cardston County Clarence Amulung........cccccovvvennenn. County of Newell
Dennis Barnes - alternate............... Town of Cardston Marinus de Leeuw.......c..ccuveeueee Village of Nobleford
Peggy Hovde (absent)................ Village of Carmangay Henry de Kok (absent).............. Town of Picture Butte
Jamie Smith (absent) .........ccc...... Village of Champion Bev Everts (absent)..........c........ M.D. of Pincher Creek
Doug MacPherson (absent)......... Town of Claresholm Don Anderberg........cccceeeevvveenns Town Pincher Creek
Butch Pauls (absent) ......cceeeeevennnnes Town of Coaldale Ronald Davis (absent)......ccceeeeeenne. M.D. of Ranchland
Elizabeth Christensen................... Town of Coalhurst Stewart FOSS....ccoevveeeriieeeeiieeeens Town of Raymond
Tanya SMith....ccccoeceeeevcieeeeee e, Village of Coutts Don NOrbY ...coeevvieeeiee e Town of Stavely
Warren Mickels (absent) ................. Village of Cowley Matthew FOSS......cccovveiviieeeeieeeene Village of Stirling
Dave Filipuzzi........cooveeevvveennns Mun. Crowsnest Pass Jennifer Crowson ......ccccccveveieeeeiieeens M.D. of Taber
Dean Ward .....cccccceevevvvvereeenn. Mun. Crowsnest Pass Margaret Plumtree (absent)............ Town of Vauxhall
Kole Steinley.....cccceeevevevciveeenneen. Village of Duchess Jason Schneider........cccocoveevceeeennnenn. Vulcan County
Gordon Wolstenholme........... Town of Fort Macleod Lyle Magnuson .......cccceeecveeeeceveeennnnen. Town of Vulcan
Gerry Carter....uvveevcceeeecieeennns Village of Glenwood Morgan Rockenbach - alternate ... County of Warner
Suzanne French (absent) ............. Village of Hill Spring Marty Kirby .....coceeeeeieiiiiieeeieeens Village of Warner
Morris Zeinstra (absent) ................ Lethbridge County Maryanne Sandberg - alternate...M.D. Willow Creek

STAFF:
Lenze KUiper....cccooiiiiiiiiiiiii, Director Gavin SCOtt .. Senior Planner
Diane Horvath ........ccccoeeviveeiciieecnen. Senior Planner Barb Johnson.........cccceeeecvieeennns Executive Secretary
Steve Harty ...oeeveveieinieivieieieievevenenee Senior Planner

AGENDA:

1. Approval of Agenda — March 5, 2020.....cccccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeriee e eseee et e s e see e s s sbee e s sareeessbeeessnanees

2. Approval of Minutes — December 5, 2019 ......coiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e (attachment)
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3. Business Arising from the IMIINULES ..............ccoiii i et e e e

4. GUEST SPEAKER -

SHANNON FRANK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — OLDMAN WATERSHED COUNCIL

“An Overview of the Oldman Watershed Council, Current Projects & Watershed Health”

5. Reports
(a) Executive COMMILLEE REPOIt co.uvieeeeiiee ettt ettt esbre e e eaba e e e e (attachment)

6. Business
(a) Review of Fee Ceilings and Floors for Planning and GIS SErvices ........cccecvveeieiiieeeicieeecciree e
(b) Change in MembBEISHIP ......uvii e e e e e st e e e st e e e s rtaeeesbtaeeesbaneesnes
(c) Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Update.......ccccccueeeciieciieciiieecieeeciee e
(d) Printing & Mailing of Agenda Packages for Board of Directors’ Meetings .......cccccceevvveeeecrverecennnnn.

7. Accounts
(a) Summary of Balance Sheet and Statement of Income for the
12-month period: January 1 - December 31, 2019 .....cccccvveeeeeeeiiiiiieeeeeeeecirreeee e (attachment)

8. Adjournment — Next Meeting JUNE 4, 2020 ......coovciieiiiiiieeeiiiiee e eciee e esire e e seieee s sbeeeessbeeesseneeeessbeeeesnns

CHAIR GORDON WOLSTENHOLME CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:02 P.M.

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by: Tom Rose
THAT the Board of Directors approve the agenda of March 5, 2020, as presented. CARRIED

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Moved by: Peggy Losey
THAT the Board of Directors approves the minutes of December 5, 2019, as presented. CARRIED

3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

None.
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GUEST SPEAKER -

SHANNON FRANK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — OLDMAN WATERSHED COUNCIL
“An Overview of the Oldman Watershed Council, Current Projects & Watershed Health”

Shannon Frank, who has been with the Oldman Watershed Council for the past 10 years, gave an
informative presentation on the purpose, goals and activities of the organization.

The Oldman Watershed Council (OWC) is a not-for-profit organization in Southern Alberta, Canada.
They are one of 11 Watershed Advisory and Planning Councils in Alberta, mandated by the provincial
government to provide an independent voice for watershed management and health under the
Province's Water For Life strategy.

The Council consists of the staff and OWC members who work collaboratively with all stakeholders
to improve the Oldman river watershed by:

e improving and sharing knowledge

e building and strengthening stakeholder partnerships

e providing a science-based forum for all voices to be heard

e promoting and facilitating community and institutional action and stewardship
e developing and implementing integrated land and water plans.

The Council is governed by a Board of Directors who are comprised of nineteen representatives from
various stakeholder sectors, and four members at large.

The OWC was formed in September 2004, when the Oldman River Basin Water Quality Initiative
(Initiative) merged with the Oldman Basin Advisory Council (BAC). When the Province's ‘Water For
Life’ strategy was released, these two groups combined to provide a diverse partnership
knowledgeable in all areas of watershed management, including sustainable water management and
land use practices in the Oldman Basin.

The Government's Water For Life Action Plan includes three goals that form the basis for policy
direction and reflect social, economic, and environmental influences.

Water For Life's 3 Goals:
e Safe secure drinking water
e Healthy aquatic ecosystems

e Reliable quality water supplies for a sustainable economy

For more information, contact: Oldman Watershed Council
319 - 6 Street South
Lethbridge, AB T1J 2C7
403-330-1346
info@oldmanwatershed.ca
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REPORTS

(a) Executive Committee Report

e The Executive Committee Report for the meetings of November 21, 2019 & January 9 and
February 13, 2020 was circulated with the agenda. Chair Gordon Wolstenholme asked if
there were any questions regarding the report and there was no response.

BUSINESS

(a) Review of Fee Ceilings and Floors for Planning and GIS Services

e A motion was passed at the last Board of Directors’ meeting on December 5, 2019 directing
administration and the Executive Committee to review the fee ceiling for both Planning and
GIS services. At the January 9, 2020 Executive meeting, the Director was asked to explain
the rationale behind our current fee structure at the March 5, 2020 meeting, and leave the
decision regarding fee ceilings up to the Board.

FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

Ensuring the primary goal of the Commission remains the delivery of quality and cost-
effective planning & GIS services to member municipalities

Encouraging member municipalities to invest in their long range planning on a routine,
consistent basis recognizing that well-planned communities contribute to the overall
strength of the region

Equitably distributing the costs of services between member municipalities

Providing a more predictable cost structure for member municipalities and more
predictable funding base to support the operation of the Commission

Flexibility to adjust for future changes in membership and membership needs

STRATEGY

The strategy is based on a full cost recovery model where member municipalities pay
an annual membership fee for basic planning services that are further subsidized by
other revenue streams such as subdivision fees, fee-for-service planning, and various
grants

The Commission continues to operate on a not-for-profit basis with the primary goal of
providing planning and GIS services to member municipalities

Members of the Commission receive the lowest possible cost for the services they
receive with the ability to access additional services as needed

FORMULA

Total Equalized Assessment of Municipality x Split Mill Rate (Urban & Rural)

2020 ORRSC Board of Directors’ Minutes — Page 4





BACKGROUND

— In 2012, the Oldman River Regional Services Commission instituted a membership fee
floor and ceiling

— Afloor dissuades understatement of the value of services provided and is required to
realize the expenses accrued in providing member services to our smaller communities
(i.e. planning advice, development advice, phone, travel, overhead, etc.)

— a ceiling prevents overstatement of the value of our services and is required to
recognize the large fees that municipalities with high Total Equalized Assessments
would pay as being exorbitant and out of line with the level of service being provided

RATIONALE

— The floor equates to 16 hours of planning time/year exclusive of subdivision and fee-
for-service items, but more importantly it provides the municipalities with a ready and
accessible professional planning service to be used when and where each community
requests or requires it

The floor currently applies to 10 villages — $2,119/year

— Theceiling equates to 510 hours of planning time/year exclusive of subdivision and fee-
for-service items and acknowledges that beyond a certain price point these
municipalities would lose any financial advantage inherent to belonging in a shared
service

The ceiling currently applies to 3 rurals, 1 city and 1 town — $68,987/year

GIS SERVICES
— @IS fees are based on per capita, except for 1 rural (Cardston County) based on parcels
Member per capita ($5.36) — ceiling $41,430/year
Non-member per capita ($5.88) — ceiling $41,430/year
City of Brooks per capita ($5.36) — ceiling $62,135/year

e Matthew Foss (Stirling) asked why the ceiling for non-member GIS was not higher than the
member ceiling. Director Lenze Kuiper replied that we will be reviewing the GIS fee structure
this year and the differential between member and non-member fees may need to increase.
Following this review, the matter will be brought back to the Board for a decision.

(b) Change in Membership

e The Town of Granum has recently dissolved and is now been absorbed by the M.D. of Willow
Creek. A motion of the Board is needed to proceed with removing the Town from the
Oldman River Regional Services Regulation membership roll.

Moved by: Maryanne Sandberg

THAT the Board of Directors, as per the Lieutenant Governor’s Order in Council (O.C.
017/2020 dated January 28, 2020) dissolving the Town of Granum, request that the Town of
Granum be removed from the Oldman River Regional Services Commission Regulation
303/2003 membership roll. CARRIED
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e The Town of Coaldale has given one-year notice to terminate their planning services

agreement effective January 1, 2021 while wishing to maintain GIS services. As we are
awaiting a response to our Executive Committee’s request to meet with their Council on the
issue, no motion to remove them from the ORRSC Regulation is needed at this time.

The County of Newell has given notice of their intention to discontinue membership as of
September 1, 2020. The Executive Committee passed a resolution on February 13, 2020
accepting termination of their planning services agreement as per their request.

Moved by: Elizabeth Christensen

THAT the Board of Directors, as per the instructions of the County of Newell, request that
the Minister of Municipal Affairs and the Lieutenant Governor through an Order in Council
remove the County of Newell from the Oldman River Regional Services Commission
Regulation 303/2003 membership roll, as of September 1, 2020.

Clarence Amulung (County of Newell) expressed disappointment that the decision to accept
the termination request was made without ORRSC meeting with their Council. The Director
explained that he sent a letter to the County requesting a meeting with Council and they
declined, stating their normal procedure with any consultants and service providers is to
work out details of contracted services with staff and administration rather than Council.
Consequently, a motion to accept their termination request was passed by the Executive.

Following discussion, consensus was that the Executive should reach out to County of Newell
Council again in an attempt to understand and resolve the issues before proceeding further.
Elizabeth Christensen withdrew her motion pending further action.

(c) Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Update

The Chinook Intermunicipal Subdivision and Development Appeal Board was established
May 1, 2019 and currently has 42 trained Board members. A total of 12 hearings have been
completed to date. ORRSC held a one-day training session on February 28, 2020 for 11 new
Chinook SDAB members, 3 independent SDAB members and 2 non-members.

(d) Printing & Mailing of Agenda Packages for Board of Directors’ Meetings

Board of Directors’ meeting agendas are currently being printed and mailed to all Board
members in addition to being e-mailed. Members were asked if the printed copies are still
wanted, or whether receiving agendas by e-mail only was sufficient. Various opinions were
expressed and an unofficial vote by raising of hands showed that many (almost half)
preferred to continue receiving printed copies by mail. Therefore, we will continue to send
agendas by both mail and e-mail, until further notice.
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ACCOUNTS

(a) Summary of Balance Sheet and Statement of Income for the 12-month period:
January 1 - December 31, 2019

Moved by: Ed Weistra

THAT the Board of Directors approve the Summary of Balance Sheet and Statement of Income
for the 12-month period: January 1 - December 31, 2019. CARRIED

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by: Gordon Wolstenholme

THAT we adjourn the General Board of Directors’ Meeting of the Oldman River Regional Services
Commission at 8:26 p.m. until Thursday, June 4, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. CARRIED

on. oS Tyl T
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OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION

MINUTES - 4 (2020)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Thursday, June 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.
ORRSC Conference Room (3105 - 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:
Gordon Wolstenholme - Chair lan Sundquist (remotely)
Jim Bester - Vice-Chair Jennifer Crowson
Don Anderberg (absent) Margaret Plumtree (absent)

STAFF:

Doug MacPherson (remotely)

Lenze Kuiper — Director

AGENDA:

1.

Approval of Agenda —June 11, 2020

Approval of Minutes — April 9, 2020 .......ccocciiiiiiiiiee ettt e e sae e e s srre e s searaeeeeans

Business Arising from the Minutes

New Business

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Accounts

(a)

(b)

Alberta Ombudsman — RARB Complaint & Result

County of NeWEll UpPdate ....cccuiiiiiieieeccieeee ettt e e e e e arra e e e e e
Assessment Review Board Update........coccviiieiii et
(010 V| DI U T Yo F=1 XU
LG IO oo £ TR RPN
Subdivision Activity 2020 ........uuiiiiiiieeiieeee e e e e e e e rraeaaaeeas

Office Accounts —

(i)
(ii)

1Y 1ol o 1A 0 TR
FAN o1 0 7O SRR

Financial Statements —

(i)
(ii)

January 1 -January 31, 2020 ....cccceeeeeiiiiieiiec e
January 1 - February 29, 2020 .....ccccueieeeiiieeecieee et et e e st s e e e aar e e e earee s

(iii) January 1 -March 31, 2020 ......ccccciiiiiiiieee e etree e et e errre e e ebre e s searae e e s earaeeeeans
(iv) January 1 - April 30, 2020 ......c.cceeiiciiieeeiieee e ecieee et eete e e e estte e e e ebre e e seara e e e s raraeeeeaes

(attachment)
(attachment)

(attachment)
(attachment)
(attachment)
(attachment)
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CHAIR GORDON WOLSTENHOLME CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 6:04 P.M.

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by: Jennifer Crowson

THAT the Executive Committee approve the agenda, as presented. CARRIED

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Moved by: Doug MacPherson
THAT the Executive Committee approve the minutes of April 9, 2020, as presented. CARRIED

3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

e None.

4. NEW BUSINESS

(a) Alberta Ombudsman — RARB Complaint & Result

e The results of a complaint made to the Alberta Ombudsman regarding a Regional
Assessment Review Board hearing conducted in 2019 in the Village of Glenwood was
shared and discussed with the Executive. The Ombudsman has closed the case and has
found no error in conducting the hearing with ORRSC, the Village of Glenwood and the
Assessor in its findings.

(b) County of Newell Update

e A list of items (Minister of Municipal Affairs approval, release of Power of Attorney with
Land Titles, subdivision file, statutory/land use bylaw file transfers) aiding in the
transitioning of membership status of the County of Newell was reviewed.

(c) Assessment Review Board Update

e The upcoming 2020 Assessment Review Board year including the number of Board
Members (11) / Clerks (3) trained and the number of complaints (3) already received, was
presented.
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(d) COVID Update

e An update on how ORRSC is handling daily operations and meeting provincial requirements
during COVID was presented.

(e) GIS Update

e ORRSC continues with the roll-out of its new GIS platform. Five municipalities (Brooks,
Coaldale, Olds, Pincher Creek and Taber) have been transitioned onto the new platform to
date, with more expected shortly. The optional addition of Tangible Capital Assets and
Vehicle Tracking modules was presented.

(f) Subdivision Activity 2020

e Six subdivision applications were received in April bringing the total number of applications
to 75 with revenue of $109,375 so far this year. ‘Subdivision Activity at this time Last Year’
shows 82 applications with $138,070 in revenue were received during the same period in
2019.

ACCOUNTS

(a) Office Accounts —

(i) March 2020

5150 Staff MIleage ..o.oovevevveeeeeeeeeieeeee e BoNNie BrUNNEr .....ccceeeeveveeeeeeveeeeeeeeveens S 50.00
5150 Staff Mileage ...c.covevevveeeeeeeceecreereeeeereeeevene Mike Burla .....cccoveeeeeeieirieeeeeeereeeee e 90.00
5150 Staff Mileage ...ccovevevveeverereceicreereeeereere e Mike Burla .....cccoveeeeeeieireeeeeeecreeeee e 90.00
5150 Staff Mileage .....ccoceveveeeeeeiceseeeeeeesieen Steve Harty ..o 72.00
5151 Vehicle Gas & Maintenance ........c.cccccceeenenn. Steve Harty «ooccvveveeeceeeeeeeeee e 4.00
5160 Staff Field EXPENSE .....cccceeveveeeerieirieieninienens Steve Harty .ooccvveeeeeceeeeeeee e 10.77
4140 APProval FEES ....uvevveeeeeereecteecreecee e Gary Benson ......ccccceveveveieieieneieinienenenenee 125.00
4140 APProval FEES ...ccvevverereeriieieieseeeesie e Peter KQupp ....cevveeeevevereieieieiererenerenenenenene 125.00
4140 APProval FEES ....covivuieeiieeeeiceieeeeeese e Adam Thompson ......cccceeeeeeieeeeeenee e 125.00
5280 Janitorial SErvices ......c.ccovvverereeereeneriecnenes Madison Ave Business Services .............. 475.00
5280 Janitorial SErvices ......ccovvverveeerieeneriecnenes Madison Ave Business Services .............. 425.00
5320 General Office SUPPLIES ..ocvveveveeeeeericrecrecneae Madison Ave Business Services .............. 17.32
5285 Building Maintenance ........cccoceeveeveveveveenens WeESEDUIME ..veveeeieeeiirieeeec e 28.32
5285 Building Maintenance ........cccocevveeveeevieeenens Wild Rose Horticultural ......ccccceveeevennnnens 600.00
5285 Building Maintenance ........cccoceevevveveeieenens WeESEDUIME ..veveeiiieeiiieeeeec e 20.98
5310 Telephone ......coceveueeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Bell Mobility ....ccoeeeeeiiieeeieeeciee e, 621.04
5310 Telephone ......cocevoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Shaw BUSINESS ...ccccuvveeeiiieeeiiiee e 180.90
5310 Telephone ......coceveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Shaw BUSINESS ...ccccuvveeeiiieeeiieee e 180.90
5310 Telephone ... DRC Communication .....ccccccevvieveieieienennns 101.00
5320 General Office SUPPlIES ..cveveveveeeereecieieeieaan, Town of Nanton .......ccccceeeeevciieeecciiee e, 49.39
5320 General Office SUPPlIES ..cveveveeeeeereeeieieeeane, Desjardin Services .......cccovveevcveeeesveeennns 233.98
5330 Dues & Subscriptions ..........cccceeveveeveverevenennne. Lethbridge Herald .........cccoveeviieeeeiieeens 293.56
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5380
5440
5470
5470
5500
5520
5570
5570
5570
1160

5150
5150
4140
4140
5285
5310
5310
5320
5320
5380
5320
5320
5320
5330
5420
5440
5470
5470
5500
5570
5570
5570
1160

Printing & Printing Supplies ........ccccoeeveveuene.e. Lethbridge Mobile Shredding .................
Land Titles Office .......c.cocererenene. Minister of FINance .......cccocceevvvineeninenns
Computer Software ESRI
Computer SOftWare ........cccceeveveeveveeeecreenerennns Whipcord .....cccuvveeeieeeciee e
Subdivision Notification .... Lethbridge Herald
MEELINGS .overeeeiiriieie et Costco
Equipment Repairs & Maintenance Xerox
Equipment Repairs & Maintenance Digitex
Equipment Repairs & Maintenance Digitex
GST Receivable ......ccccovevieeniviieeeceeeen GST Receivable .....cccoocveeiviiiiiniiieciiee,
TOTAL
(ii) April 2020
Staff Mileage ...ccoceevvevereeiirieeeeeeeeiee Bonnie Brunner ........cccvvvvvvveveveeveenenenenens
Staff Mileage ...ccoceevvevereeierieeseeeeeeeiee LCT= 1V 1 o I ol0 ) o SRRt
APProval FEES ....cccvvvvereeieierieieneeie e Barry Developments .......cccceveveeeenienenns
APProval FEES ....ccovvviviiieeeieisreeeeeee s Alain Zumbach ......ccccovveeiiiii,
Building Maintenance .......c..cccocecvviveiniennnnnn Cam Air Refrigeration .....cc.ccceceerieennenne
TelePhone ..o Bell Mobility .....ccceeveeriiiiieeeceeeeieee
Telephone ....cccveevieieiceee e Shaw BUSINESS ....ccccuvvveeeeeeeeciieeeee e
General Office SUPPlIES .vevveveieierieieieeeiee Total Office PIUS ....ccccuvveeeeeeeirieeeeeea,
General Office SUPPlIES .vovveveererieieieeeiee, Total Office PIUS ....ccccuvveeeeeeeeireeeeeeeas
Printing & Printing Supplies .......cccccevevvveruenenn Total Office PIUS ....ccccuvveeeeeeeirieeeeeea,
General Office SUPPIIES .vovveeverivricieiercreeree Total Office PIUS ...cccovvvveeeeeiieiireeeeceene
General Office SUPPLIES ..ocvveveeeeeeeericrecrecaeee Paramount Printers ........cccvvvvvevvvevevenennns
General Office SUPPLIES .vovveevevicricieieercreeree Desjardin Services ......cccceevevcveeeeiveeennns
Dues & SUBSCIPLIONS ......ovvvieveveeeeieriireiieenens Pincher Creek EChO .....cccvevveeevecvnriennnn.
Accounting & Audit FEes ........ccoevvvveerrenneennne. 424 1Y/ T
Land Titles OFfiCe ...oovvrerereeereririririeieeeeenenns Minister of FInance .......cccoccevvvviveenienns
Computer SOftWare .......ccceeeveeereeeeeeveenreeennn. ESRI
Computer SOftWare .........ccceeveeeveveeeverierenenns WhiIpcord .....cccveeeecieeeceeecee e
Subdivision Notification .........cccccceeveveeeveuennns Lethbridge Herald .......cccccovevevcieeeeiienns
Equipment Repairs & Maintenance .............. DIGItEX wivvrrrirririiiiiiiiririrererererererereeereeeeeeee
Equipment Repairs & Maintenance .............. ) ] (o) N
Equipment Repairs & Maintenance .............. DIGItEX ivvvrririiiiiiiiiiirirerererererererereeereeeeeeeee
GST Receivable .....c.ocooueeeeeeeeieeeeeeceeereeean GST Receivable .....cccccvveeecieiieieeeee,
TOTAL

Moved by: lan Sundquist

23.00
184.00
20,105.07
1,262.80
899.10
55.26
1,425.92
90.00
720.00

1,389.11
$30,073.42

$ 50.00
53.50
205.00
125.00
426.40
651.44
180.90
62.55
71.99
6.59
41.99
50.29
291.69
68.00
9,980.00
278.00
15,292.50
1,262.80
357.00
720.00
1,389.48
70.00

1,839.46
$33,474.58

THAT the Executive Committee approve the Office Accounts of March ($30,073.42) and April

($33,474.58) 2020, as presented.

CARRIED
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(b) Financial Statements —

(i) January1-January 31, 2020
(ii) January 1 - February 29, 2020
(iii) January 1 - March 31, 2020
(iv) January 1 - April 30, 2020

Moved by: Jim Bester

THAT the Executive Committee approve the following unaudited Financial Statements, as
presented:

January 1 - January 31, 2020

January 1 - February 29, 2020

January 1 - March 31, 2020

January 1 - April 30, 2020 CARRIED

6. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

e The Director reported on his activities since the last Executive Committee meeting.

7. EXECUTIVE REPORT

e Committee members reported on various projects and activities in their respective
municipalities.

8. ADJOURNMENT

Moved by: Gordon Wolstenholme

THAT we adjourn the regular meeting of the Executive Committee of the Oldman River Regional
Services Commission at 7:08 p.m. until Thursday August 13, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. CARRIED

: 2 STl
CHAIR: j/ﬁ*//ﬂ 77/’,‘/’/6 /

/bj
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THIS AGREEMENT made this day of , 2020

BETWEEN:

CARDSTON COUNTY
(hereinafter referred to as the “County”)

-and-

TOWN OF CARDSTON
(hereinafter referred to as “Cardston”)

-and-

TOWN OF MAGRATH
(hereinafter referred to as “Magrath”)

-and-

VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
(hereinafter referred to as “Glenwood”)

-and-

VILLAGE OF HILL SPRING
(hereinafter referred to as “Hill Spring”)

JOINT FIRE SERVICES AGREEMENT

WHEREAS:

A The Parties operate the Cardston County Emergency Services and the Magrath and District

Emergency Services comprising the Fire Departments;

B. The Parties wish to:

(@) formalize the fire services/department arrangements between the respective individual
Parties participating in the operation and funding of each Fire Department;

(b) advance, promote, and encourage opportunities and programs for collaboration amongst
the Parties for their joint benefit, as well as the ultimate benefit of the residents of the

respective Parties and the surrounding communities;

(c) ensure the safety of residents and businesses throughout the respective jurisdictions of the
Parties through the coordinated operations of the Joint Fire Services;

(d) to operate the respective Fire Departments, as well as own and operate the respective
equipment and facilities of each Fire Department, independently as stand-alone fire
services departments, save and except for and/or subject to the collaborations and joint

services contemplated within this Agreement;
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(e) to provide for planning, development, training and operation of the respective Fire
Departments, as well as the procurement, management, maintenance, repair, operation,
and replacement, or their respective equipment and facilities, in each case in the most
efficient and cost effective manner;

C. The Parties have identified the value of establishing policies, programs and processes for
collaborating on the planning, development, training and operation of their respective Fire
Departments, the purchase, operation, use, maintenance, repair and replacement of their
respective equipment and facilities, and the coordination and delivery of the Joint Fire Services,
the Joint Fire Programs, for the joint benefit of the Fire Departments and the Parties;

D. The Parties are committed to participating, co-operating and coordinating with each other on an
on-going basis, as further contemplated within this Agreement, for the joint benefit of the Parties;

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein contained, the
Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

11 Definitions. Unless otherwise specifically defined, all capitalized terms used throughout this
Agreement shall have the meanings provided for within Schedule “A”.

1.2 Schedules. The following schedules are attached to, and form a part of, this Agreement:

Schedule “A” - Definitions & Interpretation

Schedule “B” - Joint Governance Committee/Board
Schedule “C” - Joint Emergency Services Committee
Schedule “D” - Fire Chiefs Committee

Schedule “E” - Mutual Aid Services

Schedule “F” - Joint Fire Operations Budget & Payment
Schedule “G” - Insurance, Indemnity & Default
Schedule “H” - Dispute Resolution Procedure

ARTICLE 2 - SPIRIT, INTENT, AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES

2.1  Application. Unless otherwise specifically provided for within this Agreement, this
Agreement applies to:

(@) planning, development, training and operation of the Parties’ respective Fire
Departments;

(b) planning, development, and operation of Joint Fire Programs; and

(c) the coordination of Equipment purchases to ensure interchangeability and
interoperability across Fire Departments.

2.2 Guiding Principles. The Parties recognize that the following principles should guide the
planning, development, implementation and operation of the Joint Fire Services and the
Joint Fire Programs:

(a) Appropriateness — the collaboration amongst the Parties must be suitable for and
beneficial to the Parties participating in the aspect of the collaboration;
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2.3

24

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

(b) Adaptability — the collaboration amongst the Parties must be multi-dimensional and
flexible to change, participation, and future growth;

(c) Accessibility — the benefits of the collaboration amongst the Parties must be
accessible by all of the Parties, at their option;

(d) Affordability — the participation of aspects of the collaboration amongst the Parties must
be efficient in planning, and economical to implement and/or operate, while maximizing
synergies for the Parties; and

(e) Accountability — the benefits and burdens of the collaboration amongst the Parties must
be shared by the Parties proportionately.

Consultation. The Parties agree that they shall consult with one another in the planning,
development, implementation and operation of the respective Joint Fire Services and Joint Fire
Programs, to ensure maximum use and benefits to the Parties and surrounding communities.

Co-operation. The Parties agree to work together on a cooperative basis and to take such steps
as may be necessary and to enter into such additional agreements as may be required from time to
time in order to meet their objectives in planning, development, implementation and operation of
the respective Joint Fire Services and Joint Fire Programs.

Compliance with Laws. The Parties shall comply with all applicable statutes and regulations
governing the planning, development, implementation and operation of the respective Joint Fire
Services and Joint Fire Programs, and shall at their expense take all necessary steps to ensure
compliance with all statutes and regulations as may be applicable in that regard.

Rights of Approval. Except where otherwise specifically provided, each Party will act
reasonably in each case that it is entitled to exercise discretion hereunder or pursuant hereto and,
in particular, in each case where an action, document, thing, or matter is required to be acceptable
or satisfactory to it or is affected by its approval, consent, opinion, or discretion; and without
limitation foregoing, except where it is specifically provided that its consent may be unreasonably
withheld, it will not unreasonably withhold or delay the exercise of any such discretion.

Further Assurances. The Parties agree that they shall from time to time execute such further
assurances and documents as may be required by the Parties and their respective solicitors to give
effect to the intent of this Agreement.

Independent Action. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that, in respect of each aspect of the
Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs that the Party is participating in, it shall not
undertake any independent action with respect to the planning, development, implementation and
operation of the respective Joint Fire Services and/or Joint Fire Programs outside of the
governance, planning and operational processes provided herein. Further, in the event that a
Party does undertake independent action and incurs costs or obligations as a consequence of those
actions, unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties, the Party undertaking the same shall be solely
responsible for all such actions and any costs related thereto.

Conflicting Actions. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that it shall have the ability to
undertake independent action, and to enter into agreements with third parties to this Agreement,
with respect to the operation or management of their own Fire Department, their respective solely
owned equipment and facilities, and their respective personnel. These independent actions and
agreements do not supersede this Agreement where any discrepancies exist.
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ARTICLE 3 - TERM AND RENEWAL

3.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be effective from the date of execution of this
Agreement, and continue unless and until terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4 - GOVERNANCE

4.1 Governance Committee/Board. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties:

(@) subject always to subsection (b) below, each of the Fire Departments shall:

(M in the case of the Cardston County Emergency Services:
(A) owned by Cardston County, Town of Cardston, Village of Glenwood and
Village of Spring Hill, by or through the managing municipality
appointed from time to time;
(B) governed by the CCES Committee/Board; and
© managed and operated by or through the managing municipality
appointed from time to time, working with or through the corresponding
Fire Chief;
(i) in the case of the Magrath and District Emergency Services:
(A) owned by Cardston County and the Town of Magrath, by or through the
managing municipality appointed from time to time;
(B) governed by the Magrath Fire Committee/Board; and
©) managed and operated by or through the managing municipality
appointed from time to time, working with or through the corresponding
Fire Chief;

(b) the budgeting and operation of the Fire Departments, the Joint Fire Services and Joint
Fire Programs will be coordinated through the Joint Governance Committee/Board,
working with the Joint Emergency Services Committee and the Joint Fire Coordinator;

upon and subject to the terms, covenants and conditions contained within this Agreement.

4.2 Governance Committee/Board Membership, Scope and Terms of Reference. The
membership, scope and terms of reference for the Joint Governance Committee/Board for each
Fire Department and the Joint Governance Committee/Board shall be governed by the provisions
contained within Schedule “B”.

ARTICLE 5 - JOINT OPERATIONS

51 Joint Emergency Services Committee. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties, the
implementation, operation and administration of Joint Fire Services and Joint Fire Programs
under this Agreement shall be coordinated and managed through the Joint Emergency Services
Committee on behalf of the Parties, as contemplated within Schedule “C”, upon and subject to
the terms, covenants and conditions contained within this Agreement.
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5.2

6.1

6.2

Joint Emergency Services Committee Membership, Scope and Terms of Reference. The
membership, scope and terms of reference for the Joint Emergency Services Committee shall be
governed by the provisions contained within Schedule “C”. The Joint Emergency Services
Committee will be responsible for the ongoing planning, budgeting and co-ordination of the
Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs, and will specifically be involved in the following:

@ ensuring all decisions and recommendations are made in accordance with the goals,
principles, and spirit of this Agreement;

(b) identifying, approving, budgeting and planning for the delivery of the Joint Fire Services
and the Joint Fire Programs for the maximum benefit to the Parties;

(c) ensuring the operation of the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs are within
the applicable budget parameters;

(d) ensuring the coordination of the operations of the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire
Programs to maximize synergies for the Parties;

(e establishing agreed upon rates for equipment and personnel utilized in providing the
Mutual Aid Services and/or Joint Fire Services, as may be applicable;

4] equipment replacement, billing requirements, recruitment, policy and standard operating
procedures, and any other matter that may affect the delivery of Mutual Aid Service
and/or Joint Fire Services, or the operation of the Fire Departments; and

(9) exploring options for the further development and enhancement of the Joint Fire
Programs, the development of new Joint Fire Programs, and the development policies,
processes or other agreements, as may be determined to be necessary or prudent for the
purposes of carrying out the spirit and intent of this Agreement;

in addition to making recommendations and reporting to the Joint Governance Committee/Board.

ARTICLE 6 - COORDINATION & IMPLEMENTATION

The Joint Fire Coordinator. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties, the Joint Fire
Coordinator shall undertake the coordination and management of the meetings and mandate of
the Joint Emergency Services Committee on behalf of the Parties, as contemplated within
Schedule “C” upon and subject to the terms, covenants and conditions contained within this
Agreement.

Fire Chiefs Committee Membership, Scope and Terms of Reference. The membership, scope
and terms of reference for the Fire Chiefs Committee shall be governed by the provisions
contained within Schedule “D”. The Fire Chiefs Committee will be responsible for the ongoing
implementation and operation of the Joint Fire Programs, and will specifically have the
responsibility to:

(a) create, review and amend the SOG’s respecting the delivery of the Joint Fire Services;

(b) review, and recommend to the Joint Emergency Services Committee, respecting the
delivery of the Mutual Aid Services and/or Joint Fire Services;

(c) create, implement, manage and operate each of the Joint Fire Programs;
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(d) coordinate the operations of the respective Fire Departments and the Joint Fire Programs;

(e) conduct and coordinate incident reviews respecting the Mutual Aid Services and/or the
Joint Fire Services, and reviews of the Joint Fire Programs, and prepare recommendations
for improvements to the Fire Departments, the Mutual Aid Services, the Joint Fire
Services, and the Joint Fire Programs;

4] manage and operate the Joint Fire Programs within the applicable budget parameters; and

(o) explore options for the further development and enhancement of the Joint Fire Programs,
the development of new Joint Fire Programs, and the development policies, processes or
other agreements, as may be determined to be necessary or prudent for the purposes of
carrying out the spirit and intent of this Agreement;

in each case, as contemplated within this Agreement, in addition to making recommendations and
reporting to the Joint Emergency Services Committee in respect of the foregoing.

ARTICLE 7 - OWNERSHIP, CONTROL, OPERATION AND RESPONSIBILITY

7.1 Ownership & Control of Fire Departments, Equipment & Facilities. It is acknowledged and
agreed between the Parties that:

(@) each Fire Department is under the separate ownership and/or operation as described
within Section 4.1(a) of this Agreement including, without restriction, the personnel, the
equipment and facilities used to operate the respective Fire Departments; and

(b) notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties shall operate, manage, maintain, and use each
Fire Department in a coordinated manner under the direction of the Joint Governance
Committee/Board, the Joint Emergency Services Committee and the Joint Fire
Coordinator.

7.2 Joint Fire Coordination. Subject always to the Standard Operating Guidelines established from
time to time, in the event of any:

(@ joint or combined operation of the Fire Departments; or

(b) a response to multiple Emergencies impacting any of the jurisdictions of the Parties at the
same time;

(© a response to an Emergency impacting Two (2) or more of the jurisdictions of the Parties
at the same time;

or any combination of the foregoing, the Joint Fire Coordinator shall have final authority
respecting the coordination of equipment, resources and personnel, and the allocation of those
resources in response to the Emergency or Emergencies;

7.3 The Joint Fire Services & Programs. Notwithstanding the foregoing independent operation
and funding of the Fire Departments, the Parties shall operate and manage the Fire Departments
in a coordinated manner:

(a) as contemplated within the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs;

(b) as directed by the Joint Emergency Services Committee; and
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8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

9.1

(c) by and through the coordination of the Joint Fire Coordinator and the Fire Chiefs
Committee;

and as further contemplated within the terms, covenants and conditions contained within this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 8 - FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Fire Department. Each of the Parties will be responsible for its Proportionate Share of the costs
of operating the respective Fire Department, which Proportionate Share shall be established:

@ in the case of the Cardston County Emergency Services, by paragraph 2(b)(i) of
Schedule “F”, or otherwise by agreement between Cardston County, Town of Cardston,
Village of Glenwood and Village of Spring Hill; and

(b) in the case of the Magrath and District Emergency Services, paragraph 2(b)(ii) of
Schedule “F”, or otherwise by agreement between Cardston County and the Town of
Magrath.

Mutual Aid Program. Each of the Parties will be responsible for payment of the costs of
providing the Mutual Aid Services which are invoiced by the Responding Party in accordance
with the provisions of Schedule “E”.

Joint Fire Coordinator. Each of the Parties will be responsible for its Proportionate Share of the
costs of the Joint Fire Coordinator, which Proportionate Share shall be established by being
agreed in writing by the Parties in accordance with the provisions of Schedule “F”;

Joint Fire Services. Each of the Parties will be responsible for its Proportionate Share of costs of
providing Joint Fire Services as contemplated within Schedule “F, which Proportionate Share
shall be established by being agreed in writing by the Parties in accordance with the provisions of
Schedule “F”.

Joint Fire Programs. Each of the Parties will be responsible for its Proportionate Share of costs
of providing Joint Fire Programs, as contemplated within Schedule “F”, which Proportionate
Share shall be established by being agreed in writing by the Parties in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule “F”.

Payment and Responsibilities. The financial responsibilities of each of the Parties in respect of
the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs, are provided within Schedule “F”.

Goods and Services Tax. Each Party shall be responsible to pay all GST and other properly
assessed taxes in connection with this Agreement. The Parties shall, however, manage their
respective obligations respecting payment, collection and remittance of GST in a manner that
provides for the most efficient process as possible for the Parties including, without restriction,
ensuring that where appropriate under the applicable legislation all rebates or credits of GST
available to the Parties are accounted for prior to charging or collecting any cost under this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 - BUDGET MANAGEMENT

Joint Fire Operations Budgeting Process & Responsibilities. The Fire Departments will
prepare and present to the Parties all budgeting and reporting respecting the Joint Fire Services in
a manner consistent with the budgeting and reporting contemplated within Schedule “F”. The
Joint Fire Coordinator will coordinate with the individual Fire Departments so as to provide for a
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Joint Fire Operations Budget, and agreement upon the Proportionate Share contribution of each of
the Parties, each occurring as contemplated within Schedule “F”.

ARTICLE 10 - INSURANCE, INDEMNITY & DEFAULT

10.1 Insurance. Throughout the Term of this Agreement, the Parties shall maintain the insurance
coverage provided for within Schedule “G”.

10.2 Indemnity & Default. Each Party shall be subject to the indemnity, liability and default
provisions provided for within Schedule «“G”.

ARTICLE 11 - EXPIRATION & TERMINATION

11.1  Expiration. The provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until
terminated in accordance with the following provisions.

11.2  Termination. The Parties may agree to terminate this Agreement at any time upon mutual
agreement, subject always to:

@ the disposition of any property held under the Joint Fire Programs;

(b) the termination and satisfaction of any properly authorized agreements made by the Joint
Fire Coordinator, or any Party for and on behalf of the Parties or participating Parties, as
the case may be;

(c) settlement of all liabilities of the Parties in respect of the Joint Fire Services, the Joint
Fire Programs and this Agreement; and

(d) the dispersal of all funds held by the Joint Fire Coordinator or the Parties in respect of the
forgoing;

all as directed by the Joint Emergency Services Committee or as otherwise agreed upon in writing

of the Parties.

11.3  Withdrawal. The Parties agree that a Party may withdraw from this Agreement provided always
that:

@ the withdrawing Party has provided not less than Eighteen (18) months notice in writing
of the intention to withdraw; and

(b) the Parties have agreed upon a settlement of all ownership interests, liabilities, and
financial responsibilities respecting the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs,
and this Agreement.

11.4  Final Determination. In the event of an inability of the Parties, or any of them, to settle any of
the foregoing, the outstanding issue(s), matter(s) or thing(s) shall be referred to be resolved
pursuant to the Dispute Resolution Procedure.

ARTICLE 12 - GENERAL

12.1  Dispute Resolution. In the event of the disagreement between the Parties with respect to issue,
matter or thing arising from this Agreement (other than default in payment of a financial
obligation) the Parties shall refer such dispute to be resolved pursuant to the Dispute Resolution
Procedure, see Schedule “H”,
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12,2 Notice. The address for service of notices and other documents or payments owned are as
follows:

Cardston County

PO Box 580

Cardston, AB TOK 0KO

Attention: Chief Administrative Officer
Phone: 403-653-4977

Fax: 403-653-1126

Email: murray@cardstoncounty.com

Town of Cardston

PO Box 280

Cardston, AB TOK 0KO

Attention: Chief Administrative Officer
Phone: 403-653-3366

Fax: 403-653-2499

Email: jeff@cardston.ca

Town of Magrath

PO Box 520

Magrath, AB TOK 1J0

Attention: Chief Administrative Officer
Phone: 403-758-3212

Fax: 403-758-6333

Email: james@magrath.ca

Village of Glenwood

PO Box 1084

Glenwood, AB TOK 2R0

Attention: Chief Administrative Officer
Phone: 403-626-3233

Fax: 403-626-3234

Email: Office@Glenwood.ca

Village of Hill Spring

PO Box 40
Hill Spring, AB TOK 1EO
Attention: Chief Administrative Officer

Phone: 403-626-3876
Fax: 403-626-2333
Email: office@hillspring.ca

Or such other address as the Parties may respectively designate from time to time. Any notice
required or permitted by this Agreement may be served on the Parties by hand delivery or by
mail. Notices sent by mail will be deemed to have been received three business days after
mailing. In the event of a general postal disruption, notice shall not be attempted by mail.

[Balance of page intentionally left blank - Execution page to follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the day and year first above
written.

CARDSTON COUNTY

Per:

Per:

TOWN OF CARDSTON

Per:

Per:

TOWN OF MAGRATH

Per:

Per:

VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

Per:

Per:

VILLAGE OF HILL SPRING

Per:

Per:
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SCHEDULE “A”

DEFEINITIONS

1. Definitions

All capitalized terms used throughout this Agreement shall have the following meanings, unless otherwise
specifically defined:

(@) “Agreement” means this Joint Fire Services Collaboration Agreement, together with all schedules
attached hereto;

(b) “Cardston County Emergency Services” means the equipment, facilities, personnel and
corresponding emergency services operations jointly owned and operated by the County,
Cardston, Glenwood and Hill Spring;

(© “Dispute Resolution Procedure” means that procedure for the resolution of disputes between the
Parties contained within Schedule “I” attached hereto;

(d) “Emergency” means a sudden unexpected happening or unexpected occasion for action in which
events require trained Firefighters to use their skill and judgment in the application of firefighting
equipment or rescue equipment and techniques to manage the emergency scene, and
“Emergencies” means two (2) of more of them;

(e) “Fire Chiefs” means the fire chiefs for each of the Fire Departments appointed from time to time
by the respective Parties, and “Fire Chief” means any one of them;

f “Fire Chiefs Committee” means the committee of fire chiefs as described in Article 6 and
Schedule “D” of this Agreement;

(9) “Fire Departments” means, collectively:

(M the Cardston County Emergency Services; and
(i) the Magrath and District Emergency Services;
and “Fire Department” means any one of them;

(h) “Fire Suppression” includes the application of equipment and training to extinguish fires either
on land or in structures;

0] “Fiscal Year” means the financial or operating year of this Agreement, which year shall be a
calendar year unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties or otherwise determined by the Joint
Emergency Services Committee;

()] “Force Majeure” means any event causing a bona fide delay in the performance of any
obligations under this Agreement and resulting from:

Q) an inability to obtain materials, goods, equipment, services, utilities or labour;
(i) any statute, law, by-law, regulation, order in council, or order of any competent authority
other than one of the Parties;
(iii) an inability to procure any license, permit, permission, or authority necessary for the
performance of such obligations, after every reasonable effort has been made to do so;
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(iv) a strike, lockout, slowdown, or other combined action of workers; or
(v) an act of God,;
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no event caused by an act or omission by any Party, or caused by

an act or omission by a person not at arm’s length from any Party, or caused by the financial
incapacity of any Party, will be considered to be an event of Force Majeure;

(K) “GST” means Goods and Services Tax payable pursuant to the Excise Tax Act, R.S.C. 1985, c.E-
15, as amended from time to time;

()] “Interest” means that rate of interest as determined by the Joint Emergency Services Committee
from time to time;

(m) “Joint Emergency Services Committee” means the Joint Emergency Services Committee as
described in Article 5 and Schedule “C” of this Agreement;

(n) “Joint Fire Coordinator” means the , employed by the County, or such
further or other individual or position as the Parties may appoint from time to time;

(0) “Joint Fire Coordinator Costs” means costs of the Joint Fire Coordinator, including salary,
benefits, and expenses, or a reasonable proportionate share thereof as may be applicable to the
Joint Fire Coordinator’s responsibilities under this Agreement as determined by the Joint
Emergency Services Committee under the Joint Fire Operations Budget;

(p) “Joint Fire Operations Budget” means the proposed operating budget for the Joint Fire Services
contemplated within Section 9.1 of this Agreement, as well as within Schedule “G”, as amended
from time to time and as presented and approved annually as provided for within this Agreement;

(@) “Joint Fire Programs” means, collectively, the Joint Fire Programs described or contemplated
within Schedule “F” attached to this Agreement;

(n “Joint Fire Services” means, collectively, the Joint Fire Services described or contemplated
within Schedule “F”;

(s) “Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs” means:

(i) the Joint Fire Coordinator Costs;

(i) the costs of coordination, management and operation of the Joint Fire Services;

(iii) the costs of coordination, management and operation of the Joint Fire Programs;

as more particularly provided for within the Joint Fire Operations Budget, and those costs which
are specifically the responsibility of each Party as contemplated within Schedule “G” or
otherwise excluded from the Joint Fire Operations Budget under this Agreement;

® “Joint Governance Committee/Board” means the Joint Governance Committee/Board as
described in Article 4 and Schedule “B” of this Agreement;

(u) “Magrath and District Emergency Services” means the equipment, facilities, personnel and
corresponding emergency services operations jointly owned and operated by the County and
Magrath;

(v) “Mutual Aid Services” means those services outlined within Schedule “E”;
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(w) “Parties” means, collectively, the parties executing this Agreement, and “Party” means one of
them;

(x) “Proportionate Share” means the Parties’ respective share of the responsibility for the Joint Fire
Services & Programs Costs, including the costs of the Joint Fire Coordinator, and operating costs
of the Respective Fire Departments, as more particularly described within Schedule “G”;

) “Rates” means the equipment and personnel rates approved from time to time by the Joint
Emergency Services Committee;

2 “Responding Party” means a Party who has responded to a request for Mutual Aid Services
under the provisions of Schedule “E”;

(aa) “Requesting Party” means a Party who has requested Mutual Aid Services under the provisions
of Schedule “E”;

(@) “Standard Operating Guidelines” or “SOG’s” means those standard operating guidelines for the
performance of Emergency and Fire Suppression services contemplated within this Agreement
within each respective municipality comprising the Parties, which Standard Operating Guidelines
or SOG’s shall be established from time to time by each respective municipality comprising the
Parties and in consultation with the Fire Chiefs Committee as part of the Joint Fire Programs; and

(b) “Term” means the term of this Agreement, or renewal term as the case may be, as contemplated
within Article 3 of this Agreement.

2. Compliance With Laws

Each Party will carry on its operations and activities as contemplated within this Agreement in compliance with all
applicable laws, by-laws and regulations.

3. New Parties

In the event that a new party wishes to join the collaborations under this Agreement, the Joint Governance
Committee/Board will review the request along with its merits, implications, and recommended method of joining.
In conjunction with this review, the Joint Emergency Services Committee shall make its recommendation to the
Parties respecting this application of a new party. A new agreement may be required to adjust the Joint Fire
Programs and the respective Parties’ Proportionate Share.

4, Assignment

The Parties shall not assign this Agreement, and shall not grant any rights to any person, firm or corporation under
this Agreement, except as permitted by agreement of the Parties.

5. Severable

If any portion of this Agreement is unenforceable for any reason, that portion shall be severed, and the balance of
the Agreement shall remain and be binding.

6. No Partnership

Nothing contained in this Agreement or in any acts of the Parties hereto shall be deemed to create any relationship
or partnership other than that of licensees and common usage as set forth.

7. Interpretation and Amendments
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This Agreement as and from its effective date supersedes and extinguishes all prior agreements between the Parties
relating to the Joint Fires Services and the Joint Fire Programs. Agreements that follow this effective date will be
considered as enhancements not replacements. The Agreement is the entire Agreement between the Parties in
respect to the issues contained herein and it may not be and shall not be amended or altered in any way other than by
an amending agreement in writing duly executed by the Parties.
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SCHEDULE “B”

JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE/BOARD

1. Joint Governance Committees/Boards
The Joint Governance Committee/Board shall be made up of the following:

€)] Two (2) elected members of Council of each of Cardston County, Town of Cardston, Town of
Magrath; and

(b) One (1) elected member of Council of each of Village Glenwood and Village of Hill Spring;

for the purposes of carrying out the responsibilities contemplated within Article 4 and Section 7.1 of this Agreement
and this Schedule.

2. Joint Governance Committee/Board and Chair of the Joint Governance Committee/Board

The power and authority of the Joint Governance Committee/Board shall be subject to the terms and provisions of
this Agreement. Their role shall be to make decisions and to give approvals in connection with

@ the coordination of the operation, management, maintenance, and use of each Fire
Department; and

(b) the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs under this Agreement.

Unless otherwise unanimously agreed to by the Parties, the Chair of the Joint Governance Committee/Board shall
rotate on an annual basis between each of the Parties. The Chair for the first year will be a representative elected the
members of the Joint Governance Committee/Board, and thereafter the Chair shall rotate through the representatives
of the Parties in an order agreed upon by the Joint Governance Committee/Board.

3. Representatives

Each representative will have the authority to make decisions on behalf of their respective organization. The Parties
may each appoint alternate representatives to act on the Joint Governance Committee/Board in substitution for their
appointed representative. Each of the Parties may at any time and from time to time by written notice replace its
representative appointed by it, and any representative so replaced shall cease to be a Joint Governance
Committee/Board member upon the giving of such notice. Copies of written notices shall be given to the other
Parties, the individual so appointed as a new Joint Governance Committee/Board member, and the Joint Governance
Committee/Board member who has been replaced.

4, Vacancies

A vacancy on the Joint Governance Committee/Board shall be filled by the Party who appointed the former
representative whose loss created the vacancy. If there is a vacancy in the Joint Governance Committee/Board, the
remaining representatives may continue to exercise the powers of the Joint Governance Committee/Board in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

5. Action by the Joint Governance Committee/Board

Subject to paragraph 12 of this Schedule, the powers of the Joint Governance Committee/Board may be exercised by
resolution at a meeting of the Joint Governance Committee/Board members at which a quorum is present. Quorum
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for meetings of the Joint Governance Committee/Board shall be satisfied where all members of the Joint
Governance Committee/Board (or their authorized replacement, as contemplated within this Schedule) are present.

6. Attendance and Meetings

The Joint Governance Committee/Board, but not an individual Joint Governance Committee/Board member, may
decide to invite the general public, special interest group(s), or other private or public bodies and agencies to attend
any meeting of the Joint Governance Committee/Board and/or make submissions to the Joint Governance
Committee/Board with respect to any matter or question being considered by it. The Joint Governance
Committee/Board shall meet at least Four (4) times a year, or more as the Joint Governance Committee/Board
determines. Notice of the time, place, and agenda of every meeting shall be given by the Chair with not less than
One (1) week notice.

7. Voting Rights

At any meeting of Joint Governance Committee/Board, each member shall be entitled to vote on each question
submitted to the Joint Governance Committee/Board for decision and each such member shall have one vote.

8. Budget and Operations

Each Fire Chief shall submit the annual operating budget for the respective Fire Department to the Joint Fire
Coordinator in accordance with Schedule “G”. For clarity, budgeting for each Fire Department shall be separate
and apart from the Joint Operations Budget and associated terms related to the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire
Programs.

9. Records

The Joint Governance Committee/Board shall arrange for proper written records, and minute taking of all meetings
and decisions of the Joint Governance Committee/Board to be kept and maintained and copies of same shall be sent
to each member of the Joint Governance Committee/Board within Fifteen (15) business days following each
meeting of the Joint Governance Committee/Board. The Joint Governance Committee/Board member shall be
entitled to reasonable access to all files and records of the Joint Governance Committee/Board at all reasonable
times and shall be given the opportunity to make copies thereof from time to time.

All records of the Joint Governance Committee/Board will be retained at the offices of Joint Fire Coordinator.
10. Limitation of Liability

No Joint Governance Committee/Board member shall be liable for the acts, neglect or default of such Joint
Governance Committee/Board member, any other Joint Governance Committee/Board member, and/or the Joint
Governance Committee/Board as a whole, provided that such Joint Governance Committee/Board member has
acted, in good faith in the performance or intended performance of any duty or in the exercise or intended exercise
of any power or authority granted to such Joint Governance Committee/Board member and the Joint Governance
Committee/Board as a whole hereunder.

11. Authority of the Joint Governance Committee/Board

A decision of the Joint Governance Committee/Board made in accordance with this Schedule with respect to any
matter within the limits of its authority and jurisdiction shall be binding upon all of the participating Parties to the
respective Fire Department.

12. Unanimous Approval

Joint Fire Service Agreement 16|Page
July 2020





The following matters shall require unanimous approval by all members of the Joint Governance Committee/Board
entitled to vote at any meeting called to consider such matters, which approval shall be exercised in accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement:

€)] approval of each respective Fire Department budget, and corresponding requisitions from the
participating Parties;

(b) the addition or deletion of a Party to the respective Fire Department operations;
(© ; and
(d)

13. Referral to Dispute Resolution

If at any meeting of the Joint Governance Committee/Board, any matter is considered and the matter is neither
approved nor adjourned for further consideration, in either case by all of the members of the Joint Governance
Committee/Board entitled to vote at such meeting, then notwithstanding any intermediate acts or negotiations any
Party shall be entitled to refer the dispute, and to the extent that it is necessary or reasonable in all of the
circumstances, any related question or dispute, to be resolved pursuant to the Dispute Resolution Procedure.

14, Remuneration of Committee Representatives

Each Party shall reimburse its appointed members in accordance with its own practices and policies.
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SCHEDULE “C”

JOINT EMERGENCY SERVICES COMMITTEE

1. Joint Emergency Services Committee

The Joint Emergency Services Committee shall be made up of:
€)) the Chief Administrative Officers of each of the Parties;
(b) the Fire Chiefs; and
(© Joint Fire Coordinator;

for the purposes of carrying out the responsibilities contemplated within Article 5 and Section 7.2 of this Agreement
and this Schedule.

2. Joint Emergency Services Committee and Chair of the Joint Emergency Services Committee

The Parties hereby establish the Joint Emergency Services Committee to manage the strategic direction and general
operating policies of the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs. The power and authority of the Joint
Emergency Services Committee shall be subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement. Their role shall be
to make decisions and to give approvals in connection with the on-going strategic direction, general operating
policies, and budgeting of the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs. Unless otherwise unanimously agreed
to by the Parties, the Chair of the Joint Emergency Services Committee shall rotate on an annual basis between each
of the Parties. The Chair for the first year will be a representative elected the members of the Joint Emergency
Services Committee, and thereafter the Chair shall rotate through the representatives of the Parties in an order
agreed upon by the Joint Emergency Services Committee.

3. Representatives

Each representative will have the authority to make decisions on behalf of their respective organization. The Parties
may each appoint alternate representatives to act on the Joint Emergency Services Committee in substitution for
their appointed representative. Each of the Parties may at any time and from time to time by written notice replace
its representative appointed by it, and any representative so replaced shall cease to be a Joint Emergency Services
Committee member upon the giving of such notice. Copies of written notices shall be given to the other Parties, the
individual so appointed as a new Joint Emergency Services Committee member, and the Joint Emergency Services
Committee member who has been replaced.

4, Vacancies

A vacancy in the Joint Emergency Services Committee shall be filled by the Party who appointed the former
representative whose loss created the vacancy. If there is a vacancy in the Joint Emergency Services Committee, the
remaining representatives may continue to exercise the powers of the Joint Emergency Services Committee in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

5. Action by the Joint Emergency Services Committee

Subject to paragraph 11 of this Schedule, the powers of the Joint Emergency Services Committee may be exercised
by resolution at a meeting of its Joint Emergency Services Committee members at which a quorum is present.
Quorum of the Joint Emergency Services Committee shall be satisfied where Seven (7) members of the Joint
Emergency Services Committee are present, and each of the Parties are represented.
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6. Attendance at Meetings

The Joint Emergency Services Committee members, but not an individual Joint Emergency Services Committee
member, may decide to invite the general public, special interest group(s), or other private or public bodies and
agencies to attend any meeting of the Joint Emergency Services Committee and/or make submissions to the Joint
Emergency Services Committee with respect to any matter or question being considered by it. The Joint Emergency
Services Committee shall meet at least Two (2) times a year, or more as the Joint Emergency Services Committee
determines. Notice of the time, place, and agenda of every meeting shall be given by the Chair with not less than
Thirty (30) days notice.

7. Voting Rights

At any meeting of the Joint Emergency Services Committee, each member shall be entitled to vote on each question
submitted to the Joint Emergency Services Committee for decision and each such member shall have one vote.

8. Records

The Joint Emergency Services Committee shall arrange for proper written records, and minute taking of all meetings
and decisions of the Joint Emergency Services Committee to be kept and maintained and copies of same shall be
sent to each member and the Parties within Fifteen (15) business days following each meeting of the Joint
Emergency Services Committee. Each Joint Emergency Services Committee member shall be entitled to reasonable
access to all files and records of the Joint Emergency Services Committee at all reasonable times and shall be given
the opportunity to make copies thereof from time to time.

All records of the Joint Emergency Services Committee will be retained at the offices of the Joint Fire Coordinator.
9. Limitation of Liability

No Joint Emergency Services Committee member shall be liable for the acts, neglect or default of such Joint
Emergency Services Committee member, any other Joint Emergency Services Committee member, and/or the Joint
Emergency Services Committee as a whole, provided that such Joint Emergency Services Committee member has
acted, in good faith in the performance or intended performance of any duty or in the exercise or intended exercise
of any power or authority granted to such Joint Emergency Services Committee member and the Joint Emergency
Services Committee as a whole hereunder.

10. Authority of the Joint Emergency Services Committee

A decision of the Joint Emergency Services Committee made in accordance with this Agreement with respect to any
matter within the limits of its authority and jurisdiction shall be binding upon all of the Parties.

11. Unanimous Approval

The following matters shall require unanimous approval by all members of the Joint Emergency Services Committee
entitled to vote at any meeting called to consider such matters, which approval shall be exercised in accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement:

(@) the Joint Fire Operations Budget for the first (1st) Fiscal Year, including any proposed
amendments thereto;

(b) the Joint Fire Operations Budget for any subsequent Fiscal Year, including any proposed
amendments thereto;
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(c) the disposition of property or discontinuance of any Joint Fire Program during any Fiscal Year;

(d) the additions to and/or replacement of any Joint Fire Program; and
(e the contracting or termination of any contractor by the Parties or the Joint Fire Coordinator; and
()

12. Referral to Dispute Resolution

If at any meeting of the Joint Emergency Services Committee, any matter is considered and the matter is neither
approved nor adjourned for further consideration, in either case by all of the members of the Joint Emergency
Services Committee entitled to vote at such meeting, then notwithstanding any intermediate acts or negotiations any
Party shall be entitled to refer the dispute, and to the extent that it is necessary or reasonable in all of the
circumstances, any related question or dispute, to be resolved pursuant to the Dispute Resolution Procedure.

13. Remuneration of Committee Representatives

Each Party shall reimburse its appointed members in accordance with its own practices and policies.
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SCHEDULE “D”

FIRE CHIEFS COMMITTEE

1. Fire Chiefs Committee

The Fire Chiefs Committee shall consist of Six (6) individuals made up of:
(@) the Fire Chiefs for each of the Parties; and
(b) the Joint Fire Coordinator;

for the purposes of carrying out the responsibilities contemplated within Article 6 and Section 6.2 of this Agreement
and this Schedule.

2. Fire Chiefs Committee and Chair of the Fire Chiefs Committee

The Parties hereby establish the Fire Chiefs Committee to manage the implementation and operation of the Joint
Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs. The power and authority of the Fire Chiefs Committee shall be subject to
the terms and provisions of this Agreement. Their role shall be to make decisions and to give approvals in
connection with the on-going operation of the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs. Unless otherwise
unanimously agreed to by the Parties, the Chair of the Fire Chiefs Committee shall rotate on an annual basis
between each of the Parties. The Chair for the first year will be a representative elected the members of the Fire
Chiefs Committee, and thereafter the Chair shall rotate through the representatives of the Parties in an order agreed
upon by the Fire Chiefs Committee.

3. Representatives

Each representative will have the authority to make decisions on behalf of their respective organization. The Parties
may each appoint alternate representatives to act on the Fire Chiefs Committee in substitution for their appointed
representative. Each of the Parties may at any time and from time to time by written notice replace its representative
appointed by it, and any representative so replaced shall cease to be a Fire Chiefs Committee member upon the
giving of such notice. Copies of written notices shall be given to the other Parties, the individual so appointed as a
new Fire Chiefs Committee member, and the Fire Chiefs Committee member who has been replaced.

4, Vacancies

A vacancy in the Fire Chiefs Committee shall be filled by the Party who appointed the former representative whose
loss created the vacancy. If there is a vacancy in the Fire Chiefs Committee, the remaining representatives may
continue to exercise the powers of the Fire Chiefs Committee in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

5. Action by the Fire Chiefs Committee

Subject to paragraph 11 of this Schedule, the powers of the Fire Chiefs Committee may be exercised by resolution at
a meeting of its Fire Chiefs Committee members at which a Quorum is present. Quorum for meetings of the Fire
Chiefs Committee shall be satisfied where all members of the Fire Chiefs Committee are present.

6. Attendance at Meetings

The Fire Chiefs Committee members, but not an individual Fire Chiefs Committee member, may decide to invite the
general public, special interest group(s), or other private or public bodies and agencies to attend any meeting of the
Fire Chiefs Committee and/or make submissions to the Fire Chiefs Committee with respect to any matter or question
being considered by it. The Fire Chiefs Committee shall meet at least Four (4) times a year, or more as the Fire
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Chiefs Committee determines. Notice of the time, place, and agenda of every meeting shall be given by the Chair
with not less than Thirty (30) days notice.

7. Voting Rights

At any meeting of the Fire Chiefs Committee, each member shall be entitled to vote on each question submitted to
the Fire Chiefs Committee for decision and each such member shall have one vote.

8. Records

The Fire Chiefs Committee shall arrange for proper written records, and minute taking of all meetings and decisions
of the Fire Chiefs Committee to be kept and maintained and copies of same shall be sent to each member and the
Parties within Fifteen (15) business days following each meeting of the Fire Chiefs Committee. Each Fire Chiefs
Committee member shall be entitled to reasonable access to all files and records of the Fire Chiefs Committee at all
reasonable times and shall be given the opportunity to make copies thereof from time to time.

All records of the Fire Chiefs Committee will be retained at the offices of the Joint Fire Coordinator.
9. Limitation of Liability

No Fire Chiefs Committee member shall be liable for the acts, neglect or default of such Fire Chiefs Committee
member, any other Fire Chiefs Committee member, and/or the Fire Chiefs Committee as a whole, provided that such
Fire Chiefs Committee member has acted, in good faith in the performance or intended performance of any duty or
in the exercise or intended exercise of any power or authority granted to such Fire Chiefs Committee member and
the Fire Chiefs Committee as a whole hereunder.

10. Authority of the Fire Chiefs Committee

A decision of the Fire Chiefs Committee made in accordance with this Agreement with respect to any matter within
the limits of its authority and jurisdiction shall be binding upon all of the Parties.

11. Unanimous Approval

The following matters shall require unanimous approval by all members of the Fire Chiefs Committee entitled to
vote at any meeting called to consider such matters, which approval shall be exercised in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement:

(@ the SOG’s applicable to the performance of all or any portion of the Joint Fire Services;
(b) the creation, amendment, or replacement of any Rates applicable to Mutual Aid Services;
(© the creation, amendment, or replacement of any additional Standards applicable to Mutual Aid

Services or Joint Fire Services;

(d) : and

(€)

12. Referral to Dispute Resolution

If at any meeting of the Fire Chiefs Committee, any matter is considered and the matter is neither approved nor
adjourned for further consideration, in either case by all of the members of the Fire Chiefs Committee entitled to
vote at such meeting, then notwithstanding any intermediate acts or negotiations any Party shall be entitled to refer
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the dispute, and to the extent that it is necessary or reasonable in all of the circumstances, any related question or
dispute, to be reviewed and resolved by the Joint Emergency Services Committee.

13. Remuneration of Committee Representatives

Each Party shall reimburse its appointed members in accordance with its own practices and policies.
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SCHEDULE “E”

MUTUAL AID SERVICES

Throughout the Term of this Agreement each of the Parties shall provide the following Mutual Aid Services:

1.

Nature of Emergency — each Party may call upon the assistance of all or any of the other Parties to render
assistance that, in the opinion of the Requesting Party, is necessary for the prompt and safe handling of an
Emergency;

Nature of Mutual Aid Services and Obligation to Assist — upon receipt of a request for Mutual Aid
Services, each Party will render whatever assistance that it can without endangering the wellbeing of its
own residents;

Contact Persons to be Appointed — each Party shall designate one or more contact persons, who shall
coordinate Mutual Aid Services, and administer the provisions of this Agreement respecting Mutual Aid
Services, on its behalf. Each Party to this agreement will designate a specific request for aid format to
activate this Agreement;

Requesting Party to Assume Direction — unless otherwise provided for within the SOG’s:

(@) each Responding Party shall utilize all responding personnel and equipment in accordance with its
own Emergency response plans;

(b) the Responding Party’s personnel and equipment shall follow directions of the Requesting Party’s
Incident Commander, save and except in the event that the personnel or equipment shall be
endangered beyond acceptable limits;

All Costs to be Charged to Requesting Party — the Requesting Party requesting Mutual Aid Services
hereby accepts financial responsibility for all services rendered and rental of all equipment's requests. The
billing/accounting officer for each Party will maintain a registry of services and equipment usage during the
time of assistance;

Equipment and Personnel Rates — all equipment and personnel used for providing Mutual Aid Services
shall be billed by the Responding Party to the Requesting Party at the Rates established from time to time
under this Agreement;

Equipment and Personnel — only equipment owned solely by the Responding Party, or volunteered
equipment, shall be used in providing Mutual Aid Services. In addition to the employees of a Responding
Party, those who have voluntarily offered their services to any Responding Party may be utilized in
providing Mutual Aid Services;

Volunteer Equipment and Personnel to be Accepted by Requesting Party — all volunteer equipment
and volunteer personnel proposed to be made available and utilized by any Party in providing Mutual Aid
Services shall first complete a standard volunteer agreement form at the offices of the Responding Party.
The form shall be faxed or e-mailed to the Mutual Aid Contact for the Requesting Party for acceptance of
terms and conditions of equipment rental and personnel costs, prior to the Responding Party utilizing the
volunteer equipment and volunteer personnel in providing Mutual Aid Services; and

Performance & Preparedness — each of the Parties shall faithfully carry out and perform Mutual Aid
Services to the best of the Responding Party’s abilities and resources, and shall further maintain a state of
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preparedness adequate to meet any Emergency situation that may arise, all as may be more particularly set
forth within the SOG’s or this Agreement.
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SCHEDULE “F”

JOINT FIRE OPERATIONS BUDGET & PAYMENTS

1. Budgets and Reports

In connection with its obligations to coordinate and manage the Fire Departments, as well as the Joint Fire Services
and the Joint Fire Programs, the Joint Fire Coordinator shall:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

()

(f)

Initial Budget — immediately upon execution of this Agreement prepare and within Forty Five
(45) days deliver to the Joint Emergency Services Committee for its approval, a Joint Fire
Operations Budget for the balance of the current Fiscal Year on a monthly basis, which shall set
forth anticipated expenses;

Long-Range Plan — within Three Hundred (300) days from the date of this Agreement, prepare
and provide to the Joint Emergency Services Committee, for its approval, a long-range
management plan, providing for a Three (3) year budget and planning horizon and setting forth
current status of the Fire Departments, the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs, and
intended goals and milestones for the development and/or evolution of the Fire Departments, the
Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs;

Annual Budgets — not later than October 1 of each Fiscal Year, prepare and submit to the Joint
Emergency Services Committee, for its approval, a Joint Fire Operations Budget including,
without restriction, providing for the following:

0] consumables;

(i) personal protective equipment;
(iii) training and instruction;

(iv) capital acquisitions; and

(v) salaries and wages;

Interim Reports — prepare and provide to the Joint Emergency Services Committee and the
Parties, all interim reports as may be required and agreed upon by the Joint Emergency Services
Committee in order to diligently track the actual operating expenditures and capital expenditures
and compare these expenditures to the Joint Fire Operations Budget;

Annual Reports — within Ninety (90) days after the close of each Fiscal Year, will provide all
reports as may be required and agreed upon by the Joint Emergency Services Committee in order
to report on the actual operating expenditures and capital expenditures for the prior Fiscal Year
and compare these expenditures to the Joint Fire Operations Budget;

Books of Account; Information —at all times maintain at its office, or at such other location as
may be approved by the Joint Emergency Services Committee, reasonable books of account and
records with respect to the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs, and all transactions
entered into in performance of this Agreement. Each Party may at reasonable times, upon
reasonable notice, and at reasonable intervals, request and obtain information with respect to the
Fire Departments, the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs and review the books and
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records maintained by the Joint Fire Coordinator pursuant to this Agreement and relating to the
Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs;

(9) Method of Keeping Accounts —maintain (in accordance with instructions given by the Joint
Emergency Services Committee, from time to time, as to the manner in which the same shall be
maintained) accounts with respect to matters arising under this Agreement, in order for the Joint
Emergency Services Committee to readily extract financial statements pertaining to the Joint Fire
Services and the Joint Fire Programs in the form required by it.

2. Proportionate Shares

In respect of the Fire Departments, the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs provided to or participated in
by the Parties, unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties the following Proportionate Shares of the following costs
shall apply to each of the Parties:

(@) Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs — in respect of the Cardston County Emergency Services,
the Proportionate Shares shall be as follows:

0] Joint Fire Coordinator Costs — in respect of the Joint Fire Coordinator Costs, the
Proportionate Shares shall be as follows:

(A) Cardston County — 30%;
(B) Town of Cardston — 30%;
© Town of Magrath — 30%;
(D) Village of Glenwood — 5%;

(E) Village of Hill Spring — 5%;

(i) Remainder — in respect of the remainder of Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs, as
may be established and agreed upon by the Joint Emergency Services Committee from
time to time.

(b) Fire Department Costs — in respect of the costs of the respective Fire Departments:
0] Costs of Cardston County Emergency Services — in respect of the Cardston County

Emergency Services, the Proportionate Shares shall be as follows:
(A) Cardston County — 46.5%;

(B) Town of Cardston — 46.5%);

(© Village of Glenwood — 4%;

(D) Village of Hill Spring — 3%j;

(i) Costs of Magrath and District Emergency Services — in respect of the Magrath and
District Emergency Services, the Proportionate Shares shall be as follows:

(A) Cardston County — 50%;
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(B) Town of Magrath — 50%.
3. Billing and Cost Recovery

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and subject always to the direction of the Joint Governance Committee/Board or the
Joint Emergency Services Committee, costs of certain Joint Fire Services may be recovered by directly billing the
Parties and/or property owners and/or the persons responsible for causing the requirement for the Joint Fire Services,
in accordance with the Parties’ applicable bylaws or policies establishing rates for such services. Revenue received
from such direct billing will be accounted for within the Joint Fire Operations Budget and related processes
contemplated within this Schedule.

4, Estimate and Payment

Within Thirty (30) days of the approval of the Joint Fire Operations Budget and in any event within Sixty (60) days
of the commencement of each Fiscal Year, the Joint Fire Coordinator shall advise the Parties in writing of its
estimate of the Proportionate Share of the Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs payable by each of the Parties
during the then current Fiscal Year or remaining portion thereof. Such estimate shall be a reasonable estimate and
based upon either the approved Joint Fire Operations Budget, or otherwise wherever possible upon previous
operating expenses. Each Party’s Proportionate Share of the Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs shall be paid:

(@) in equal monthly installments in advance on the first day of each and every month during the
applicable Fiscal Year; or

(b) in lump sum amounts
based on the Joint Fire Coordinator's estimate.
From time to time the Joint Fire Coordinator, subject to approval of the Joint Emergency Services Committee, may
re-estimate, on a reasonable basis, the amount of Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs for any Fiscal Year or
portion thereof. All adjustments will then be used to recalculate new payment amounts for the remainder of the
Fiscal Year.

5. Payment of Costs, Changes and Overruns

The Joint Fire Coordinator shall be responsible for, and is authorized to make payment of:

(@) Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs — all Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs to the
corresponding party as provided for within the Joint Fire Operations Budget, or subsequently
approved by the ;and

(b) Fire Department Costs — all operating costs of the respective Fire Departments as provided for

within the respective Fire Department’s operating budget, or subsequently approved by:

(1) the CCES Committee/Board in respect of any costs of the Cardston County Emergency
Services; and

(i) the Magrath Fire Committee/Board in respect of any costs of the Magrath and District
County Emergency Services.

6. Accounting and Adjustment

Within Ninety (90) days after the end of each Fiscal Year or portion thereof (or with respect to any component of
Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs or revenues which cannot be computed within such Ninety (90) day period,
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within Thirty (30) days after the Joint Fire Coordinator has received the information necessary to compute such
component of the Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs, or revenues), the Joint Fire Coordinator shall submit to the
Parties a detailed statement of the actual Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs payable, and revenues receivable, in
respect of such Fiscal Year or portion thereof and a calculation of that amount, by which the actual Joint Fire
Services & Programs Costs paid by the Parties exceeds or falls short of the actual Proportionate Share of Joint Fire
Services & Programs Costs payable by the Parties for such Fiscal Year after accounting for all actual costs and
revenues.

7. Payment of Adjustment

Concurrently with the delivery of the accounting and calculation provided for above, the Joint Fire Coordinator shall
provide to the Parties an invoice, in the case of an amount payable by the Parties, or a statement of credit, in the case
of overpayment by the Parties. The Parties shall pay the Joint Fire Coordinator in full, the invoiced amount within
Sixty (60) days of invoice date. The Joint Fire Coordinator shall credit to the Parties, on account of the
Proportionate Share of Joint Fire Services & Programs Costs payable by the Parties during the next Fiscal Year, an
amount equal to the credit due upon any such statement of credit issued by the Joint Fire Coordinator.

8. Access to Information

Each Party will share information as may be relevant from time to time, or as may be reasonably required by the
Parties subject to the application privacy legislation. The Joint Fire Coordinator will maintain records of all costs
and revenues relating to the operation and management of the Joint Fire Services and the Joint Fire Programs.
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SCHEDULE “G”

INSURANCE, INDEMNITY & DEFAULT

1. Insurance
Throughout the Term of this Agreement;

() The owner of each piece of equipment used in providing any Joint Fire Services or Joint Fire
Programs will maintain in respect of the equipment:

M comprehensive  general liability insurance in an amount not less than
$ per occurrence, or such greater amount as the Parties may
reasonably agree to from time to time; and

(ii) property insurance on a replacement costs basis for the equipment;
(b) Each Party will maintain at its own cost:
(i) commercial general liability insurance in an amount not less than $

per occurrence, or such greater amount as the Parties may reasonably agree from time to
time, covering the use and operation of their respective Fire Departments; and

(i) worker’s compensation coverage in respect of each and every employee engaged in the
operation of the respective Party’s Fire Department, in accordance with all applicable
statutes and regulations;

together with such other insurance as the Parties may consider necessary or prudent, or as may be required
by the Joint Emergency Services Committee from time to time.

2. Certificates

Each Party acknowledges and agrees that it shall provide to the other Parties proof of insurance, upon being
requested to do so in writing.

3. Indemnity

Each Party shall indemnify and save harmless the other Parties and their board members, trustees, councilors
officers, employees, agents, volunteers and invitees, to the extent permitted by law, of and from any and all
liabilities, damage costs, expenses (including legal fees and disbursements) claims, suits and actions arising out of
the following:

(@ any breach, violation or non-performance of any term or condition in this Agreement on the part
of the indemnifying Party to be fulfilled, observed and performed;

(b) death or injury to any person or damage or destruction of any property resulting from the
negligence of the indemnifying Party, its trustees, councilors, officers, employees, agents,
licensees, contractors or any other person for whom that Party is legally responsible.

This indemnity shall survive the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement.

4, Limitation of Liability

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Party shall be responsible for any of the foregoing damages or claims to the
extent:
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(@) caused by or contributed to any default on the part of the indemnified Party under this Agreement,
or the negligent acts or omissions of indemnified Party, its trustees, councilors, officers,
employees, agents, licensees, contractors or any other person for whom that Party is legally
responsible; or

(b) comprising any indirect, consequential or punitive damages, including loss of profits or revenues
or other similar damages.

5. Default

A Party shall be deemed to be in default under this Agreement if any of the following events occur (each of the
following events to be referred to in this Schedule as an “Event of Default”, the Party in default to be referred to as the
“Defaulting Party” and the Party or Parties not in default to be referred to as the “Non-defaulting Party”):

(@ a Party fails to make a payment as required by any provision of this Agreement including failure to
pay an indemnity amount required to be paid pursuant to the terms of this Agreement (a “Payment
Default”);

(b) a Party fails to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement (which, for greater certainty, shall

not include obligations resulting in a Payment Default if not performed) (each such event being a
“Performance Default”); or

(© a Party experiences any of the following events (an “Insolvency Default”):
0] the Party institutes voluntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up procedures;
(i) the Party takes any voluntary proceedings under any bankruptcy or insolvency legislation to

be adjudicated as bankrupt or for any other relief;
(iii) the Party makes a compromise with or an assignment for the benefit of creditors;
(iv) a receiver is appointed with regard to the Party or to any material part of the Party’s property;

(v) a court adjudges the Party to be bankrupt or makes an order requiring the liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Party; or

(vi) if the corporate existence of the Party is otherwise terminated.

6. Notices and Cure Periods

In the event that a Party claims that there has been a Payment Default or Performance Default committed by or affecting
the other Party, the Party making the claim shall give to the Party alleged to be in default a notice (hereinafter referred to
as the “Notice of Default”). In this regard:

€)] the Notice of Default shall specify and provide particulars of the alleged Event of Default;

(b) in the event the alleged Event of Default is capable of being remedied, the Party alleged to be in
default shall:
0] have no cure period in respect of an Insolvency Default,
(i) have a cure period of ten (10) days after receipt of the Notice of Default with respect to a

Payment Default,
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(iii) subject to subparagraph (b)(iv) and (c) below, have a cure period of Thirty (30) days after
receipt of the Notice of Default with respect to a Performance Default, or

(iv) if a Performance Default is such that it cannot be reasonably remedied within Thirty (30)
days after receipt of the Notice of Default, have a reasonable period of time to cure the
Performance Default provided that the Defaulting Party promptly commences and diligently
continues thereafter to remedy the Event of Default;

(©) if before the expiry of the later of the cure period (if any) referred to in subparagraph (b) above, or the
time to cure specified in the Notice of Default, the Defaulting Party cures the Event of Default, the
Default Notice shall be inoperative and the Defaulting Party shall lose no rights hereunder.
7. Payment Default

In the case of a Payment Default (including a Payment Default that is a failure to pay upon the occurrence of an
Insolvency Default), the Non-defaulting Parties shall have the following rights and remedies:

(@)

(b)

)

(d)

to charge the Defaulting Party Interest with respect to the unpaid amount until it is paid, calculated
daily, regardless of whether the Non-defaulting Party has notified the Defaulting Party in advance of
its intention to charge Interest with respect to the unpaid amount and/or;

to set-off against the unpaid amount any sums due or accruing to the Defaulting Party by the Non-
defaulting Parties in accordance with this Agreement and/or;

to maintain an action or actions for the unpaid amount and Interest thereon on a continuing basis as the
amounts become payable but are not paid by the Defaulting Party, as if the obligation to pay those
amounts and the Interest thereon was a liquidated demand due and payable on the date the amounts
were due to be paid, without any right or resort of the Defaulting Party to set-off or counter-claim;
and/or

to terminate this Agreement;

and any obligation to pay Interest under this Paragraph shall apply until the Payment Default is rectified or remedied and
shall not merge into a judgment for principal and interest, or either of them.

8. Performance Default

In the case of a Performance Default:

@ the Non-defaulting Parties shall have the right to suspend entitlement to the benefits under this
Agreement, including the right to suspend any payment owing pursuant to this Agreement; or
(b) the Non-defaulting Parties may but shall not be obligated to, either directly or indirectly by engaging a
third party or otherwise, as the case may be, do all such things in order to rectify such Event of Default
at the sole cost and expense of the Defaulting Party; or
(©) the Non-defaulting Parties shall have the right to terminate this Agreement.
9. Insolvency Default

In the case of an Insolvency Default, the Non-defaulting Parties shall have the right to:

€)] suspend performance of its obligations under this Agreement; or
(b) terminate this Agreement.
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10. Remedies Cumulative

A Non-defaulting Parties may, at its or their discretion, exercise the remedies referenced within this Schedule in the
alternative, concurrently or cumulatively, except where inconsistent with the express provisions contained in this
Agreement and provided that in the case of a Payment Default the concurrent or cumulative exercise of remedies shall
not result in duplication or a recovery on the part of the Non-defaulting Parties based on an amount (excluding Interest)
in excess of the Payment Default. No delay or omission by any Non-defaulting Parties in exercising its rights or
remedies hereunder shall operate as a waiver of those rights or remedies or of any other right or remedy and no single or
partial exercise thereof shall preclude any other or future exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy.

11. Force Majeure

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, whenever and to the extent that any Party shall be unable to perform, or shall be
delayed or restricted in the full performance of, any obligation within this Agreement (other than any financial or
payment obligation under this Agreement) by reason of an event of Force Majeure, such Party shall, so long as any
such impediment exists, be relieved from the performance of such obligation to the extent restricted or prevented by
that event of Force Majeure, and the other Party shall not be entitled to compensation for any damage, inconvenience,
nuisance or discomfort caused by such delayed or restricted performance. Provided always that such relief shall in any
event be limited to a maximum period of one hundred and eighty (180) days. In the event that any of the Parties are
impacted by an event of Force Majeure the Parties agree to meet within ninety (90) days to determine remedies
required.
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SCHEDULE “H”

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE

1. Definitions - In this Schedule, the following words and phrases have the following meanings:

() “Arbitrator” means the person appointed to act as such to resolve any Dispute;

(b) “Arbitration” means a process whereby each of the Parties, with or without legal counsel, agrees
to jointly engage and meet with an Arbitrator who will render a binding decision in respect of any
Disputes;

(© “Dispute” means any disagreement or controversy between the Parties concerning any matter
arising out of this Agreement;

(d) “Disclosed Information” means the information disclosed by a Party for the purpose of
settlement, negotiation, Mediation or Arbitration;

(e) “Mediation” means a process whereby a Representative of each Party, with or without legal
counsel, agrees to jointly engage the services and meet with a Mediator to participate in a
mediation, conciliation or similar dispute resolution process;

()] “Mediator” means the person appointed to facilitate the resolution of a Dispute between the
Parties;

(9) “Party” means a party to the Agreement to which this Dispute Resolution Procedure is attached,
and “Parties” means more than one of them;

(h) “Senior Officials” of the Parties involved in the Dispute shall consist of the chief administrative
officer, Fire Chief (if applicable), and the reeve or mayor, as the case may be, for each Party to the
Dispute; and

(i) “Representative” means an individual who has no direct operational responsibility for the matters
comprising the Dispute who holds a senior position with a Party and who has full authority to
settle a Dispute.

2. Dispute Process - In the event of any Dispute, the Parties agree that prior to commencing litigation, they

shall undertake a process to promote the resolution of a Dispute in the following order:

(@)
(b)

(©)
(d)

first, by negotiation;

second, by way of elevation of the Dispute to the Senior Officials of the Parties involved in the
Dispute;

third, by way of Mediation; and

fourth, by arbitration, if mutually agreed to in writing at the time of the Dispute, by the Parties.

Negotiation, Mediation or Arbitration shall refer to, take into account, and apply the intentions and
principles stated by the Parties within the Agreement to which this Schedule is attached.

3. Negotiation - A Party shall give written notice (“Dispute Notice”) to the other Party of a Dispute and
outline in reasonable detail the relevant information concerning the Dispute. Within seven (7) days
following receipt of the Dispute Notice, the Parties shall each appoint a Representative, who shall meet and
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attempt to resolve the Dispute through discussion and negotiation. If the Dispute is not resolved within
thirty (30) days of receipt of the Dispute Notice, the negotiation shall be deemed to have failed.

4, Elevation - If the Representatives cannot resolve the Dispute within such thirty (30) day period, then the
Dispute shall be elevated and referred to the Senior Officials of the Parties involved in the Dispute. Within
seven (7) days the determination that Negotiation has failed to resolve the Dispute, the Parties shall each
appoint the Senior Officials of each of the Parties, who shall meet and attempt to resolve the Dispute
through discussion and negotiation. If the Dispute is not resolved within thirty (30) days of the
determination that Negotiation has failed to resolve the Dispute, the elevation to Senior Officials shall be
deemed to have failed.

5. Mediation - If the Senior Officials cannot resolve the Dispute within such thirty (30) day period, then the
Dispute shall be referred to Mediation. Any one of the Parties shall provide the other Party with written
notice (“Mediation Notice”) specifying the subject matters remaining in Dispute, and the details of the
matters in Dispute that are to be mediated. If the Mediation is not completed within sixty (60) days from
the date of receipt of the Dispute Notice, the Dispute shall be deemed to have terminated and failed to be
resolved by Mediation.

6. Arbitration

(@) If the Mediation fails to resolve the Dispute and if both Parties so agree in writing, at the time of
the dispute, the Dispute shall be submitted to binding Arbitration. One of the Parties may provide
the other Party with written notice (“Arbitration Notice™) specifying the subject matters remaining
in Dispute and the details of the matters in Dispute that are to be arbitrated. If the other Party
agrees to proceed to Arbitration, such Dispute shall proceed to Arbitration. A failure to respond to
the Arbitration Notice shall be deemed to constitute a refusal to proceed with Arbitration;

(b) The Arbitrator shall conduct the Arbitration in accordance with the commercial arbitration rules
(the “Rules”) established from time to time by the ADR Institute of Canada Inc., unless the Parties
agree to modify the same pursuant to any arbitration agreement. The Arbitration Act (Alberta)
shall apply to all Arbitrations but if there is a conflict between the Rules and the provisions of the
Act, the Rules shall prevail. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any such Arbitration shall be
conducted in the English language;

(© The Arbitrator shall proceed to hear and render a written decision concerning any Dispute within:
0] forty-five (45) days, if the subject matter of the Dispute is less than $50,000.00; or

(i) one hundred and twenty (120) days, if the subject matter of the Dispute is greater than

$50,000.00.

(d) The Arbitrator has the right to award solicitor-client costs against the unsuccessful Party and to
award interest but does not have the right to award punitive, consequential or other exemplary
damages.

(e The Arbitrator’s decision is final and binding but is subject to appeal or review by any court of

proper jurisdiction only with respect to an allegation of fraud.

7. Participation - The Parties and their Representatives will participate in good faith in the negotiation,
Mediation and, if applicable, Arbitration processes and provide such assistance and Disclosed Information
as may be reasonably necessary and notwithstanding that litigation may have commenced as contemplated
in this Schedule.

8. Location - The place for Mediation and Arbitration shall be Cardston, Alberta, unless otherwise agreed
upon by the Parties.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Selection of Mediator and Arbitrator - If the Parties are unable to agree upon the appointment of a single
Mediator or Arbitrator within ten (10) days after receipt of the Mediation Notice or Arbitration Notice,
either of the Parties may request that a single Mediator or Arbitrator, as the case may be, of suitable
training, experience and independence, and who in respect of the subject matter of the Dispute has a
reasonable practical understanding, be appointed by the executive director or other individual fulfilling that
role for the ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. The executive director shall be requested to make this
determination within five (5) days of receipt of the request.

Costs - Subject to Paragraph 5(d) of this Schedule in the case of an Arbitration, the Parties shall bear their
respective costs incurred in connection with the negotiation, Mediation and, if applicable, Arbitration
except that the Parties shall equally share the fees and expenses of the Mediator and Arbitrator and the cost
of the facilities required for Mediation and Arbitration.

Disclosed Information - All Disclosed Information shall be treated as confidential and neither its delivery
nor disclosure shall represent any waiver of privilege by a Party disclosing such Disclosed Information.
Subject only to the rules of discovery, each Party agrees not to disclose the Disclosed Information to any
other Person or for any other purpose. Such Disclosed Information cannot be used in any subsequent
proceedings without the consent of the Party who has made the disclosure. The Parties agree that any
Representative, Mediator and, if applicable, Arbitrator shall not be subpoenaed or otherwise compelled as a
witness in any proceedings for the purpose of testifying with respect to the nature or substance of any
dispute resolution process that may arise in relation to any matter that is a subject of this Agreement.
Nothing in this dispute resolution procedure shall require a Party to disclose information that is subject to
confidentiality provisions with third parties.

Litigation and Limitations Act - No Party shall commence litigation concerning the Dispute until the
negotiation and Mediation processes have concluded. The Parties agree that during the time any Dispute is
subject to the negotiation and Mediation processes, the limitation periods set forth in the Limitations Act
(Alberta) shall be stayed. The limitation periods shall be reinstated once the Mediation terminates or is
deemed terminated so that each of the Parties shall have the respective rights and remedies that were
available to them before the commencement of these processes. Any Party may commence litigation on
any date, if necessary, to preserve its legal rights and remedies if the commencement of litigation after that
date would otherwise be banned by any applicable limitation period or if the commencement of litigation is
otherwise necessary to prevent irreparable harm to that Party.

Confidentiality - The Parties agree that there is a real risk that substantial damage to a Party’s commercial
interests may result if Disclosed Information or Confidential Information is obtained by third parties
because a Dispute becomes the subject matter of litigation. The Parties agree not to contest or oppose,
directly or indirectly, an application by a Party to the court, that the court’s file relating to such litigation,
including this Agreement and supporting financial information, be sealed upon commencement of the
litigation.
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